
IIOIIIY C-EWII. A .... .. ' 
..... 11.1175 

,. •• , - 1371 



THE STATE lAW LIBRARY 
BEFORE THE 

STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

INQUIRY CONCERNING A JUDGE, NO, 5 

NOVEMBER 12, 1975 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
CQURT IIEPOATE~S 

GUARANTY BANK fll.AZA 
CGIII'U& CHAIIITI, TEXAS COPY 



121. 

THF. MASTER: Hr. MPPk, you llrP still 

2 undPr oat~ And I would aooreciatp it if you 

3 would havP a St>at. 

4 

5 EXAMINATION CONTINUED 

6 

BY MS, LEVATINO: 
7 

8 Q Mr. MePk, I'm handing you Examiner's Exhibits 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

~~ and ~6 which were introduced ypstprday. 

THE MASTER: I have tht>m nPfthPr offered 

nor 11dmftted a~· I am probably wrong on 

that, You, as I recall, Mr. Mitchell, agreed 

to these Ex~ibits be{n~ offered subject to 

the 2eneral objections that you havP. 

MR, MITCHELL: Ri~ht. 

THE MASTEP.: Which you will state liP-Bin 

now. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Your Honor, 

I wo,,ld ob.1ect to the introduction of E-5'>, 

H-1 through 38 and E-56, H-1 through 12. 

They go beyond the formal noticP. They arr 

ht>~ond t~e term doctrine, that is, none of 

them h11ving occurred after January 1st, 

1975. 

MS. LEVATINO: Your Honor, I would 
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19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

point out tha~ in the daily transcrfpt these 

P.xhtbits were offered Mr. Mitchell expressed 

no objections ~ubjert to only questions on 

rross-examinat:ton and they Wt"rP accPpted. 

THE MAS n:R: I thou~ht they had been 

admitted, too, but I have allowed him a 

standin~ ohiection on these :rounds. 

MS. LEVATINO: All rt•ht, Your Honor. 

T}{E MASTER: -- at a orevi.ous session 

and I ;ust have him restate it daily so 

that the record ~ill reflect it. It is 

in my vi. ew a completE-ly le~al thPory, that 

is, defensive. and does not really ~o to 

the admissibility or non-admissibility of 

the documents and he Is just protecting thP 

record by not waiving, and I don't think he 

could !f he didn't object. 

MF • MITCHELL: That i. s rt gh t. 

THF. MASTER: But you prE'fer to object. 

MR. MITCHELL: I am sorry, I did not 

explain that to Counsel, that the Court had 

last week r~quired me on a daily basis to 

restate those, I think, four basic objec-

tfons that we had to all evidence. but 

thank you for the opportuni.ty, Your Honor, 
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to reass~rt those to E-55 and E-56, Judge. 

2 THE WITNESS: B~fore we start, may I 

3 I think Mr. Mitchell -- I think I saw him 

4 with 8 ma~nifying ~lass. If I could borrow 

s that I coul~ read these fi~ures a lot better. 

6 I don't have my regular reading glasses with 

7 me. 

8 THE MASTER: If anyone has a magnifying 

9 glass he would be wflling tn make it avail-

10 able 

II JUDGE CARk~~LO: I know where one is, 

12 Judge, and I will get it. 

13 MS. LEVATINO: Since I will begin the 

14 questioning referring to these checks, could 

IS we wait for the magnifying glass? 

16 T!JE MASTEl~: YPs, sir. 

17 
(Discussion off the record,) 

18 

19 Q (By Ms. L~vatfno:) Mr. Meek, on Exhibit 56, 

20 Examin~r's Exhfbit 56, which is a re~roduction of 

21 8 number of Duval County checks, I ref~r you to 

22 the first check which a~Dears on the first ~age 

23 of that Exhibit. 

24 A Yes. 

25 Q Would you tell the claim number of that check? 
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A That fs 191,0-193. 

2 Q All right, now I will refer you to Examiner's 

3 Ex~ibit Number 55 on page 415. 

4 A 4~1. did you say? 

s Q 415, four one five. 

6 A All right. 

7 Q Would you read me the claim number that appears 

8 on that page, pleas~. 

9 A That ts 193. 

10 Q Would you tell 

II MR. MITCT"""T,L: Pardon me, I'm confused. 

12 I~ that 415. if it is I don't see it. 

13 MS. LEVATINO: Yes, it is page 415 in 

14 Exhibit 55, Examiner's Exhibit 55. 

15 A That is D-173, I miscalled that number. 

16 Q I helieve it is 193 because there are reproductions, 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

some of it is not quite a clear as it was. 

MR, MITCHELL: Are you calling that 

193? It looks like 173. 

THE MASTER: Mr. Mitchell, you just 

can't do that, that is too informal. 

HR, MITCHELL: I can't see the number 

193, that is my problem, Judge. 

THE MASTER: I don't mow whether it is 

193 or 171. 
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MR. MITCHELL: I just can't tell tf 

2 that ts what he is calling it, I am satis-

3 
fled it is there. 

4 A I believe It Is 193, Your Honor. 

5 Q Mr. Meek, what would the relationship between the 

6 check in Examiner's Exhibit 56, Subdesignation H-2-( ) 

7 and the claim which a~pears in Exa~iner's Exhibit 

8 55, Subdesi~nation H-1-(27) be? 

9 A The relationship, are you talking about this 

10 claim on pa~e --

11 Q YPs, sir, I am,sir. 

12 A And the check? 

13 Q Yes. 

14 A Well, the check was in payment of this claim. 

15 Q I would now refer you back to Examiner's Exhibit 

16 56, the second check on that page. 

17 A All ri~ht. 

18 Q And would you tell thP Court the clalm number on 

19 that check? 

20 A D-6- 12 • 

21 Q All rf.ght, now, I would now refer you to Examiner's 

22 Exhibit 55 on pa~e 417, Subdesignatlon H-1-(21) and 

23 ask you to tell the court the claim number on that 

24 
pa~e. 

25 A D-6- 12 • 
----4!-----------------------------------;--
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Q And what would the r~lationship between the check 

in Examiner'R Exhibit 56 and the claim in Examiner's 

E~hibit 55, what would that be, pl~ase? 

A Th~ check was in payment of that claim. 

Q All ri~ht. I now refer you to Examiner's Exhibit 

56, pa~~ 441, the check at the top of that pa~e 

and would you read the claim forre, please -- the 

claim number, I mean. 

A Claim number is A-8- 12 

Q I would refer you to Examiner's Exhibit Number 55, 

page 419, Subdesigna~lon H-1-(29). would you read 

the claim number that appears on that page. sir? 

A That is A-8- .2 • 

Q What is the relationship between the check in 

Examiner's Exhibit 56 and the claim form which we 

have just referred to? 

A The check was in payment of that claim. 

Q I refer you to Examiner's Exhibit 56, page 441, 

the second check on that page and ask you to read 

the claim number on that check. 

A That is A•139. 

Q I r~fer you to page 421 of Examiner's Exhibit 55. 

would you tell thP claim number that appf&"S on 

A That is A-119. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7840t 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q And what fs th~ r~lat{onship betwe~n th~ check 

and the claim? 

A The check was in payment of that cla1m. 

..........___ 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Hnnor, w~ are 

~oing to object to the last s~ries of ques-

ttons fnsofar as they attempt to tie in the 

claim number and the checks on the ~rounds 

that that would b- hearsay, there bein~ some 

disparity of dates as high as three and four 

months betwePn the claim and the check and 

it bein~ the witness' prior testimony that 

those itemq of claims would all be considered 

at the commissioners court following the 

commencement of the month after which they 

were presented and for that reason we would 

object. 

THE MASTER: The objection is over-

ruled. 
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Q All right, str. Now, I refer you to Examiner's 

2 Exhibit 56, page 442, the first check on that 

3 page. would you read the claim number, please? 

4 A A-987. 

5 Q On page 442, sir, of E-56 --

6 A Pardon me, I skipped a page, I don•t have--

7 wait, yes, here it is, I am sorry. That is A-353. 

8 Q I refer you to page 423 of Examiner's Exhibit 55 

9 and ask you to read the claim form which appears 

10 on the t page . 

II A A-353 · 

12 Q What is the relationship between the check and the 

13 form? 

14 MR. MITCHELL: Same objection as before, 

15 Your Honor. 

16 THE MASTER: Overruled. 

17 THE WITNESS: That check is in payment 

18 of this claim. 

19 Q I refer you to Examiner's Exhibit 56, the second 

20 check on that page. Would you read the claim 

21 number? 

~ Q I refer you to page 425 of Examiner's Exhibit 55 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, Your Honor. 

I have been informed Mr. Flusche is inter-
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viewing Mr. Gonzalez in front of Mr. Chapa. 

2 That is the Mr. Chapa that is called as a 

3 witness. I believe the Rule has been 

4' invoked and 

5 THE MASTER: I do not recall anyone 

6 !.nvoking the Rule, am I in error? 

7 MR. ODAM: No, sir, but I wlll instruct 

8 Mr. Flusche not to interv!.ew the witness !.n 

9 the presence of another. 

10 MR, MITCHELL: I think I don•t have 

II to invoke thA ~ule, I may be in error, 

12 THE MASTER: You are wrong, I believe. 

13 Is it in these Rules that you 

14 have to do so? I thought it was like in a 

15 civil case, that you had to invoke the Rule. 

16 MR. ODAM: Well, I can tell him--

17 THE MASTER: I will certainly agree 

18 that it applies to all parties. You can•t 

19 interview witnesses in tandom either. 

20 MR. MITCHELL: I don't intend to, 

21 Q (By Ms, Levatino:) I refer you to page 425 of 

22 Examiner's Exhibit 55, what is that claim number 7 

23 A A-77'J, 

u Q ~hat is the relationship between the check in 

25 Examiner's Exhibit 55 and Examiner's Exhibit 56? 
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A The check was tn payment of that claim. 

2 Q I refer you to Examiner's Exhibit 56, page 443. 

3 MR. MITCHELL: May we have a 

4 continuing objection to hearsay? 

5 THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

6 THE WITNESS: 443, was that? 

7 Q Yes, sir, page 443, the first check on that page. 

9 Q I refer you to Examiner's Exhibit 55, page 427. 

10 would you read the claim there? 

12 Q What in the relationship between the check and the 

13 claim form? 

~ A This check was in payment of that claim. 

15 Q I refer you to Examiner's Exhibit 56, page 443, 

16 the second check Jn that page. Would you read the 

17 claim number for that check? 

n A A-1227. 

19 Q I refer you to page 429 of Examiner's Exhibit 55 

20 and ask you to read the claim number which 

21 appears on that page. 

22 A A-1227. 

~ Q What is the relationship between the check and the 

24 claim form just identified? 

~ A The cleck was in payment of that claim. 
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Q I refer you to E-56, page 444, and ask you to 

read the claim number on the first check on that 

page. 

A .t\-1622. 

Q I refer you to page 431 of Examiner's Exhibit 55 

and ask you to read the claim number on the form 

on that page. 

A A-1622. 

Q What is the relationship between the check and the 

claim for just identified? 

A The check was in pavment of that claim. 

Q I refer you to Examiner's Exhibit E-56, page 444, 

the second check on that page. would you read 

the claim number? 

A A-2160. 

~ I refer you to Examiner's Exhibit 55, page 434, 

and ask you to read the claim number on that page. 

A What page number? 

Q 434. 

A A-2160. 

Q What ls the relationship between the check and 

claim form just identified? 

A The check was in payment of that claim. 

Q I refer you to Examiner's Exhibit 56, page 445, 

and the first check on that page, read the claim 
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number, please. 

2 f, A-2'343. 

3 ~ I refer you to Examiner's Exhibit 55, page 436, and 

4 ask you to identify the claim number appearing on 

5 that page? 

6 A A-2843. 

7 Q What is the relationship between that claim form 

8 and the check just identified? 

9 A That check was in payment of thRt claim. 

10 Q I refer you to Examiner's Exhibit 56, page 445, 

II the second check o~ that page. Would you read the 

12 claim number, please? 

13 A The second check? 

14 Q Yes. 

15 A A-3151. 

16 Q I refer you to Examiner •s Exhibit 55, page 438, 

17 and ask you to read the claim number appearing on 

18 the t page? 

19 A A -3151. 

20 Q What is the relation ship between this check and 

21 the claim form just identified? 

~ A That check paid that claim. 

~ Q Okay. Mr. Meek, you previously testified that your 

24 

25 

office processes these claim f0rms and checks in 

connection with other kinds of claims. would you 
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tell the Court what your office goes through 

l2251 

2 in processing the claim forms and checks in the 

3 checks we just now discussed? 

4 A When they come to our offic~, as I have implied 

5 before, we don't examine each claim that is 

6 handed to us. We put them away until we are ready 

7 t? process the claims for the commissioners' court. 

8 Each claim is examined, and l am talking about 

9 all bills, not just claims, because they are all 

10 mixed together. The bill is examined and we go 

11 back to the records to see how much we have paid 

12 thB company or this individual and to verify the 

13 claim as being due and payable. 

14 ~q~, A 11 right • 

15 A When that is done, we proceed to write the checks, 

16 when we get them all processed, and then make these 

17 claim jackets and put the identifying material on 

18 the claim jacket. 

19 Q You said, sir, that you make the checks out, is 

20 this before or after you have presented these 

21 claims to the commissioners court? 

~ A The checks are made out after the claims have 

23 gone to the commissioners court and have been 

24 okayed by them. 

~ ~ This is substantially the same process which you 
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described yesterday in the processing yesterday? 

2 A Exactly, we don't differentiate between claims or 

3 bills for materials or anything else. We handle 

4 them all in the same manner. 

5 MS. LEVATINO: Pass the witness. 

6 

7 

8 

9 
BY MR. MITCHELL: 

10 

II ~ Mr. Meek, in the c.:: ~se of examining the claims 

12 for the welfare department, who makes an 

13 examination of the return warrants or checks to 

14 see that they have been properly endorsed and 

15 thereby properly chargeable to the account of the 

16 county? 

17 A If I understand you right, you're asking who 

18 examines the return checks for endorsements, is 

19 that correct? 

20 Q Yes. 

21 A No one that I know of. The checks come back to 

22 the treasurer. 

~ Q someone assumes they have been endorsed properly, 

24 

25 

I assume, and for example, in Examiner's Exhibit 

56, would you turn to page 440, and I am looking 
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at the checks there. I notice H-2-(1) of 

2 Examiner's Exhibit 56 which is Lhe check number 

3 3935, shows an endorsement by the Cash Store, 

4 Abel Ysaguire. 

5 A That is right. 

6 Q That appears to be a proper endorsement by the 

7 payee, Cash Store of Benavides, Texas, is that 

8 right? 

9 A I suppose it is, but if I were looking at that, 

10 the check ls made out to the Cash Store and 1 

11 would consider tha~ ~ne endorsement, but there 

12 is another endorsement on it. 

13 Q The Cash Store is an Ysaguire enterprise? 

~ A I don't know. 

15 0, Each item appearing on page 44J and 441, 442, 

16 443, 444 and 445, all appear to be properly 

17 endorsed by the Cash Store and I suppose honomd 

18 by Duval County ln that the items were paid? 

19 A Yes, I am sure these checks were never looked 

20 at after they were returned from the bank. 

21 Q There is no evidence that anybody else, other 

22 than the Cash Store, cashed the check? 

~ A That is beyond our province. This check would 

24 

25 

have gone to any number of people after the Cash 

Store people endorsed it. There would be nothing 
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wrong tn that, 

2 Q It would appear from this endorsement that Mr. 

3 Abel Ysaguire or the other Mr. isaguire, I believe 

4 those are referring to 440 t-hrough 445? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q Now, counsel has asked you, as regards the 

7 procedure followed for the processing of the welfar 

8 checks, and I will ask you a few questions along 

9 those lines before I move to another subject. 

10 I believe your testimony was previously that 

11 the same procedure ~1senttally exists in the county 

12 for the payments of these welfare claims as 

13 evidenced by Examiner's Exhibit 55 and appearing 

14 on page 351, as existed for the payment of claims 

15 by which you testified in detail yesterday? 

16 A That is right, we don •t differentiate between a 

17 welfare bill or any other. That is out of our 

18 hands to do so. 

H Q I understand. So the record is clear, referring 

20 to page 351, let's take that claim 1739, is that 

21 right? 

22 A Yes. 

~ Q Does that appear to be claim 1739? 

H A Yes, that is it. 

25 Q A 1 right. Taking it, for example, H-1-{1) is a 
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reproduction of this claim jacket? 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q And it is ~he same claim jacket about which you 

4 testified ~esterday that is made up by your office? 

5 A Right. 

6 Q And the cl&im number is assigned? 

7 A That is right. 

8 Q And the claimant is identified here and here would 

9 be the Cash Store, and the amo~nt is tdentified, 

10 is that correct? 

11 A T ha t is c orr e c t • 

12 Q And who writes in the 665 after it is examined 

13 and approved, is that your office? 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q And then I believe further, on this claim jacket, 

16 that is H-1-(1) aJpears that the claim is 

17 examined and apprJved to be charged against the 

18 general fund of the county treasurer? 

19 A That is correct. 

~ Q In addition, the code is assigned, and that is 

21 Mr. Hinojosa's coding, is it not? 

22 A That is right. 

~ Q And that is the coding that survives through and 

24 is put on the warrant of the check? 

~ A Correct. 
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-ll--------------------------_12_3_Q__\_ 

Q And the purpose of the warrant or check and the 

amount again, this six sixty-five, and the 

department being the county welfare? 

A Correct. 

Q All right, now, fn~ide that jacket because of the 

difficult for someone readfnp the record to envf~on 

in~ide that jacket there appPar~ to be fir~t H-1-(1 

which a~~ears to be a Duval County welfare depart-

ment form, am I correct? 

A That'~ correct. 

Store, the ultimate ~ayee. and the claimant on 

H-1-(1). 

A That'~ rfpht. 

0 Alon~ wfth the addre~s. am I correct? 

A That was th~ la~t one, 

Q Along wfth the address? 

A Yes. 

Q That has been --

A Yes. 

0 An~ then there fs -- authority to Cash Store to 

deliver the list and by list, hefn~ a lf~t of 

~roceries, I su~~ose, or a list for ~avment? 

A That t~ what I would assume, yes. 
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'1 Q Ths t 

2 II 
3 I 

4 I 
s I 

A 

Q 

A 

" list of 1~ems, 8m I c~rrPet? 

That {q correct. 

a1on~ with thP total amount? 

That'fl rill;ht. 

8 Q And then thPrP ifl a Duv8l Cnunty welfare depart-

7 mPnt huyfne in that particular PY~ihft, tt 

I aooP8r~ tn hP Ramfro Carrillo above t~e printPd 

9 name, Elvira DPLeon, county welEare officer, ts 

10 t;at correct~ 

II 

12 Q ts Mr~. F.lvfrA DeLeon the county welfare officer? 

13 

14 Q Ri~ht on thrnu~h? 

15 A Ye!4, !"fr. 

16 Q And t~Pn there is on the rfghthand sidP a signa-

17 ture ~f the perenn receiving this order, that is 

18 the order from the Duval County welfare depart-

II 

m A That' !4 rt~ht. 

21 0 All rtght. Nnw, below that, H-1-(1) below that 

appearq to be the rPgular invoice, does it not? 

That, I believe, is identified ~s a Cash Store 

25 A That'~ rt~ht, 
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~------·----------------------____ __,lo.::2c.c.:3...=2+--

Q And lt corr~sponds fn dat~ and n~rsons and amounts 

to what is (Dltained i.n the Duval County welfare 

dPnartm~nt official form? 

A That's right. 

Q An~ also it is noted, it is for th~ Cash Store 

and a~ain Ah~l Ysaguire? 

A Thllt 1 ~ riJ!:ht. 

Q That little tape to the left that counsel asked 

you to identify appears to be a total of various 

claims, does it not, that is the 665? 

A WPll, that is Mr. Hinojosa's tape, he ran it off. 

Q Right, of which the 160 actually is only one 

A That's right. 

Q ThP claim is not, of course, for six hundred and 

sixty-five. 

A Yes, it is for six hundred and sixty-five. 

Q I'm sorry, I stand corrected. The claim against 

the county is six hundud and sixty-five but the 

specific claim for the Cash Store --

A That's right. 

Q -- for six twenty-two is for on~ hundr~d and 

sixty dollars. is that correct? 

A Right. 

Q And then if we look over to Exhibit Number ~6 WP 
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should be able to ffnd a check ~ayin~ the six 

2 sixty-five, should we not? 

3 A That is --

4 MR. MITCHELL: Counsel, is there one? 

5 MS, LEVATINO: Counsel, there is 

6 not. WP have identified earlier all of 

7 the chPcks which are paying claims for 

8 ·in herP., these are just the ones we iden-

9 tffied on the direct. 

10 MR. MITCHELL: I picked a bad example, 

11 but let me carry it throu~h verbally. 

12 Q The claim that is now the jacket ~oin~ back to 

13 ~a~e 351, Mr. Meek, don't let me ~et ahead of 

14 you, goin~ back to 351. 

15 A Is that the --

16 Q Pa~e 151, ~o hack to pa~e 351 for me, nlease. 

17 A Page 351. 

18 Q Yes. sir, have you ~ot it? 

19 A Is that in the checks or --

20 Q No, the claim forms. 

21 A Oh, the claim forms, 351, all right. 

22 Q The document reproduced on pa~e 351. 

23 MR, MITC IELL: Which, for the record, 

24 is Exhibit 55. Examiner's H-l-(1) to (38). 

~ Q Those Exhibits would be ~ documents presentPd to 
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thP commissioners court? 

A That's ri~ht. 

Q All right, that would be th~ claim jacket, the 

official Duval County welfare d~partment form, 

the execution of that order, I Ruppos~. by the 

CRsh Store as it is her~ and the tape, Mr. Hinojosa 

apparently taping toget':ter the t.umber of claims 

presented on that date undPr that number for 

the six sixty-five. 

A They would all be in that one claim 1acket. 

Q Right, so that the claim jacket, as appears in 

the Exhibit, is not complete, as I correct? 

It does not show the other claims that have 

been used to make up the six sixty-five. 

A That's ril!ht. 

THE MASTER: Mr. Mitchell, I thf.nk if 

you turn to page 352, you will find them, 

and that is still H-1-(1). 

MR. MITCHELL: Very good, thank you, 

JudJ!:e. 

Q It Rppears that what has happened Is that the 

Exhibits hav~ been spread to include the onP 

twenty-five, which would be on page 352. That is, 

I am lookinJ!; at the little tape> fr,lm Mr. Hinojosa 

therP. 
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A Yes. 

2 Q And the one forty which ·~~ears on --

3 
THE MASTER: The one forty is the 

4 
bottom one on page 352. 

s Q On 352, at the bottom? 

6 A Yes, sir. yes, sir, that is correct. 

7 Q And the two forty which ·~~ears {n the middle 

8 of the page of 152 being H-1-(1)? 

9 A That's right. 

10 Q All going in to make up the six sixty-five which 

11 is claim number A-1939? 

12 A That's correct. 

13 Q All right. now, each and every one of these 

14 claim jackf'ts would also include a~~arently the 

15 memorandum, or were they, ·~~earing on page 352, 

16 wh1ch is H-1-(2) and would you mind turning to 

17 page 353 and looking, for example, at the bottom 

18 one on 412 on ~age 353, Mr. Meek, it ap~ears to 

19 be, "Please give Joe" it is illegible"twenty 

20 dollars" signed by someone? 

21 A Yes, I see that. 

Q Now, if you wfll recall, or do you recall seeing 

23 the Exhibits in the originals that these were 

24 that is, and by these, H-1-(2) on 353 were 

25 actually little slips, little slips of pa~er 
' -------*------------------------------------------------------------------l~-
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and si~ned by various ~ersons. 

A I would pr~sume so, but I don't recall them 

individually. 

Q Because the reproduction does not accurately 

reflPct that they are separate sheets -- se~arate 

little slips of paoer. 

A They would be. 

Q Identtfyin~ persons in time, do you recall that? 

A They would be, yes. 

Q And they would ~o as part of the input into that 

claim jacket H-1-(1), claim number 1739, it would 

be included in the 1acket? 

A That's correct. 

Q So that the commissioners court, if it wanted 

to examine 

MS. LEVATINO: Counsel, I think we 

need to clear this up. You are referring 

to thi.n~s that are marked as H-1-(2) as 

H-1-(1) and I believe for the record 

MR. MITCHELL: I am sorry, Your Honor, 

I stand corrected, I meant to refer on 

~a~e 353 as H-1-(2) beinP. the mattPr repro-

duced on the ri~hthand side of ~a~e 353, 

which by the form of reprodu~tlon doesn't 

accurately reflect the original form of the 
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Exhibft. 

Q Th~se are littl~ slivers of pap~r. aren't they, 

Mr. M~ek? 

A As far RS I know. 

Q And each one fs included in that claim jacket? 

A Yf>s. 

Q And so that again thf> claim jack t which is goine 

back again to 351. which would be H-1-(1), that is 

the claim jacket includes fn tt the official form, 

aopearing -- likewise on page 151, the Duval 

County welfare deparLment. 

MS. LEVATINO: Excuse me, Counsel, or 

f>Xcuse me, Your Honor. when these Exhibits 

wf>re Introduced, they -- it was clearly 

stated that these are a series of thirty-

~ight separate Exhibits in Examtn~r's 

Exhibit 55. Each one of them be4ng numbered 

differently. The claim form which Counsel 

is now referring to h sub-Exhi.bit Number 411 

The slips which he is referring to on 

page 351 are designated as 412. This is 

a sub-Exhibtt. 

MR. MITCHELL: I thought that is what 

I was doing. 

MS. LEVATINO: I'm sorry, Counsel, 
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you wer~ {ndicating --

2 THE MASTER: You hav~ moved, I am not 

3 sure but what you intend to, althouP-h I 

4 mfrht not hAve followed it completely, from 

5 the 1ittle sli~s of paper that where there 

6 is a handwritten notation in H-1-(2) and 

7 you have ;um~ed back to H-1-(1). 

8 MR. MITCHELL: BerausP I am ~ninP- tn 

9 put them little sli~s fn that folder. 

10 THE MASTER: Well, are you sugP-esting 

II the little si;r~ that were ~n the folders 

12 marked H-1-(?) were in anot~ folder? 

13 MR. MITCHELL: No, they are i.n the 

14 1acket H-1-(1). 

15 THE MASTER: Well, is that right, 

16 ~fr. ME'ek? 

17 A I couldn't tell yo\1, sir. Those folders were 

18 correc-t when they were first handed in, but thPy 

19 have been passed through so many hands now there 

20 Is no telling where they found the slips. 

21 Q We have established this, I understand, Mr. 

22 Meek, looking at ~age 351, ~lease, sir, that the 

23 ~latm ;sckets and envelope that f@ H-1-(1). 

24 A That's rip,ht. 

~ Q And tn a~pears the official form, Duval County 
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2 A YfS. 

3 Q That aopear~ as a matter of fact on page 351 as 

H-1-(l), is that correct? 

5 A That's ri.ght. 

6 0 Ann also in it is the grocrry slip down at the 

7 bottom which is, my copy says H-1-(1) d~ted also, 

8 that is, 6-1 or 6-22-70, is that right? 

9 A That's right, sir. 

10 Q And the little tape which is in the lower left-

II hand of page 151, W'•~~h is H-1-{1), correct? 

12 A That right. 

13 
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Q Now, my next question is also in the claim jacket 

is the source of that Duval County welfare depart-

ment form and that is the document appearing on 

page 353, H-1-(2), those little slips? 

MS. LEVATINO: Your Honor, I am sorry 

to object, but this ts a claim form which 

appears in between the material counsel 

is referring to and another claim form 

identified as H-1-(2) and I believe that 

counsel is attempting to confuse the wit-

ness as he has had copies of ~hesP and has 

seen the originals and he has had copies of 

this particular Exhibit for a long time. 
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MR, MITCHELL: Coun~el, you're ~ivin~ 

me morP cr~dit for ~il~ than I have. I'm 

tryin~ to ~stablfsh th~ ~hysical conglomer-

atP that ~oes into that iacket. 

Q Re~ardless of what 1acket it is, Mr. M~ek. it 

contains ~enerally an authority slip -- or authorf-

?ation th!t is in th~ form of a little slip t'l-tttt 

a~~ears -- the kind of which appears on pag~ 353? 

A That's ri~ht, we would have all supportin~ docu-

ment!'l fn there. 

Q Right, and t'l-tat is "''"H you meant wh~n you test i.-

fi~d in Austin, when Counsel, the v~ry same Coon-

sel that qu~sttoned you today, asked you to des-

cri.be the 11roc~dure I beliPvP and I am correct 

w;en I -- ,hen I say your testimony was that the 

now, I'm tt•lking specifically about how the Duval 

County handl~d it's welfare obligations and you 

test l fi ed l!p therP. --

MR. MITCHELL: And incid~ntally, 

Couns~l. I'm questioning him on ~e 301 of 

the official record of the Senate, the 7th 

day proce~dings. 

Q You stated t'l-terr that persons desiring w~lfare 

would approach t'l-tPi r commi.S!i oner or !'lome other 

county official or some welfare worker and statP 
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thrir rasr 8nd they would bP ,tvrn a slip of 

they would ~o the ~rocery store~ if it were doctor, 

ho~pttalization and so on and so forth, those per-

sons would be referred to the peoplr furnishing 

those Rervire!!? 

A That 's d ~?;ht. 

Q All ri~ht. Now, t~at brings me tn my next line 

of ~uestions, Mr. Meek, and that is the prncPdurr 

for thP ~·,el fare paymrnt, that is tht> mPthod u!l Pd 

hy the claimant setting asidr now t~e method of 

paymrnt, you undrrstand~ 

A I understand, Mr. Mitchell, but alRo you rrad from 

my prior tPsttmony, I think you will find also in 

that that I testified to the fact that I havP 

nrvPr sern ~nyone apply for welfare. I am iust 

assuming that that is the method that th@y would 

A~oroach thr nroof'r person and thry would prob-

~bly get onP of the slips that wr see later on, 

Q I understand that, and that, of cours~, is true 

with everythfn~ that you have testified to, askrd 

you by Counsel, as re~ards all of the information 

you necessarily havr to rely on coming to your 

office. We apprec~e that. 

A That's right. 
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Q T~~ procedure, however.which you nreviously iden-

tified i~ that the reci~tent and/or a~nlicant 

with ~o directly to the welfare worker or to 

the commissioner, or to some other official? 

A That fs the way I assume it is, yes. 

Q All ri~ht. Now, turn if you would with me hack 

now to paJ!;e 35'3. I'm ~oin~ to ark you some ques-

tions. 

The welfare worker or th~ commi~sion~r or 

some other official that was aUhorized would 

a~parently scrren th~ welfare a~~licants and 

would execute a notation the likes of which appear 

on 353 as H-1-(2). am I correct? 

A That's ri.J!ht. 

Q And that would, in turn, underlie the ao~lication, 

the ty~e of which a~~ears on oa~e 351 on the 

official Duval County welfare form? 

A That's ri~ht. 

MS. LEVATINO: Your Honor, I ~"ill have 

to ob~ect to this. This witness has already 

tE'stlfied he has no ~ersonal knowled~e of 

thh. It calls for a conclusion and assumn-

tion on the basis of the witness' personal 

MR. MITCHgLL:' Yor H"nor, I move to 
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<~tr:k> all tl,f' tPstimony on the same basts 

that was put to h-tm by the examiner. 

THE MASTER: I don't want to intt>rff'r 

with cross-exam-tnatlon, but I think the 

problPm arises, Mr. Mitc~ell, and I want 

and I am not followin~ what you are doing, 

so I am really tryln~ to cl~rify. 

I think the problrm arising, that Ms. 

LPvatino's discussion that the littl~ writtt>n 

slips appParing on 353 were in the 1acket 

anpearing on t ,,at page rather than the 

other iackPt to which you continue to refPr. 

Now, do you disagree with that proposition? 

MR. MITCHELL: I have no idea,they 

were all introduced by her up there in 

Austin. I am not even worried, Your Honor. 

and I don't offer it for that purpose. 

THE MASTER: I think that is what is 

giving rise tn the objection, is it not? 

MS. LEVATINO: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: She has ~one throu~h 

the methodology of the claims, but is the 

mf'thodology employed in the filfng of the 

allowances and claims which is meani.ngless 

wi.thout t~t> procPdurE> for thP wplfare, but 
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I .<~m intPrlockf.n~, that therE> are a~?;encies 

to which f.t goes, thP welfare workers, or 

other officials, and t~at man trlg•ers the 

official procedure for ~ivfng the slip. It 

is taken into the welfare procedure, the 

form is executed and they ~?;O to the store 

and such anrl such. 

THE MASTER: I th~nk you are perfectly 

entitled to develop that. I th i.1k it i.s 

simply getting these sli.ps on page 353 into 

the jacket -- on page 353, into the jacket 

on pa~e ~51 Is where the oroblem ls, and 

for your examination it doesn't matter where 

they were, does it? 

MR.MITCHELL: That's right, and I 

don't fntend, I'm sorry, there ls a misunder-

standing in the record, I didn't intend to 

~ut them in the other jacket. 

I don't know because Counsel had posses-

sion of them, and this very witness was used 

to authenticate them and I don't know where 

they ,o, Judge, and it is not really impor-

tant to my line of questioning. 

Tl£ MASTER: So irrf'spective of the 

jacket, you can just ~~t him to testify how 
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'1R, MITCHELL: Right. 

THE ?.fASTER: How these sums get author-

•fR, MITCf.IELL: Right. 

THE MASTER: -- which fu w~at you are 

doing. 

;1R. MITCHELL: An<l I am very, 'MY 

conscious of the pPople uostairs who arP 

not sitting herP. looktng at them because 

when thPy start ~oing through hP.rP., I really 

questioned with the man sitting in Austfn 

reading the record, Judge Meyers, and I 

know he gP.ts this and hP looks at 351, he 

is not -- and he looks over at 353, he's 

~otng to c;ay, "What is all of this material 

out herP. i.n ~51, and how does it relate over 

herE'," 

That's all I'm trying to d~, I'm trying 

to show how this moved together and how 

the method of payment appears in which the 

orocedurf's of trigger{ng the payment appears 

and hope we have a clean record. 

MS. LEVATINO: Your Hon~"r, I do beliere 

my objection goes to a little bit more than 
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t~at, because the witness has testified he 

does not kno~ how the ~rocedure works of his 

own knowled!!e, prior to receiving these 

thin~s in his office. ijp orocesses them 

from the time they ~et to his office, but 

he has testified to the fact that he assumes 

ft ~orks that way but he has no personal 

kno~11rl~e of it. 

MR. MITCHELL: Now, Your Honor, in 

connection with that statement of Counsel I 

am goin~ to offer for the record oa~P 229 

of the hearing before the Senate on Monday, 

OctobEr" thf' 6th, 1975, and Counsel was pre:!-

sent and I want thts in t,e record. It 

shows the good faith underlyin~ that obiec-

tion. 

If I mfght be permitted, as ~art of 

the bill, to introduce the questions com-

mencinv, "Would you please statE> your name, 

s i_ r?" Answer: "\Talter Meek". Commenci.ng 

with that examination and down and through 

questions ~ro~ounded to this very same wit-

ness in the exact very question I just got 

through asking him and the ve1·y deta f. led 

examination ofthe procedures on three hundred 
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and onP and particularly, Jud~P Meyers, 

the middlP of page 101. 

THY.: NA~TER: I thou~ht you said 129, 

I'm com~letely lost. 

MR. MITCHELL: No, 229, Judge Meyers, 

I am ~orry, 229 through Rnd including 102, 

the very same question, thf very same proce-

dures tn~uired into and for Counsel to make 

a statement to this Court th~t this witness 

is nnt qualified to answer the question hav-

{np ryut the very same question to him within 

the last sixty days, Your Honor. 

I think the record should stand of the 

very same questions put to this same witness. 

THE MASTER: Well, but Mr. Meek has 

testi.fi.ed that he has never SPen a person 

ap~ly for welfare, is that correct~ 

THE WITNESS: That i.s correct, Your 

Honor. 

THE MASTER: And that you are simply 

assumin~, making an assumpti.on by thesn 

littlP handwritten notPs and how they come 

8bout. 

THE WITNESS: Thllt i.s ~tght, sir. 

THE MASTER: 'JI?'ll, the ob1Pcti.on is 
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su~tained. You can c~rtalnly develop what 

h~ ftnds when it i~ delivPred to him, but hP 

do~s not know how it com~s about aR I und~r-

stand it. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well then, Jud~e, 

THE MASTER: I do not understand your 

bHl at all. 

MR. MITCHELL: I ~ubmit tbst he is 

not Qualified to testify as to any of it. 

I Rubmit he is not qualified to testify as 

to the checks ~~d how it comes about because 

he domn't know anything about that, nor the 

jacket, nor the claim. If that is the case. 

he is an authenticating witness, Judge 

Me~s, I understood that ts why he is brou~ht 

here, and as being an authenticatln~ witnPss, 

he can certainly t~stlfy as to what is in 

the jack~t when it gets in and presents it 

to th~ commissi.oners court. 

THE MASTER: I take it he doesn't ~et 

the iacket. h~ makes th~ jacket. 

MR, MITCHELL: He draws the jacket. 

THE MASTER: He gets the claim and 

ore~ares the jacket himself. 

MR. MITCHELL: That's right. 
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THE MASTER: It is prepared tn his 

office under hts supervision. 

MR. MITCHELL: Rt~ht. 

THE MASTER: He puts the papers in the 

jacket and presents it to the commissioners 

court, is that correct? 

THE WITNESS: That ts correct. 

MR. MITCHELL: That is what I tried 

to establish. 

THE MASTER: Just a minute, I asked him 

a question. 

THE WITNESS: That is correct, Your 

Honor. 

THE MASTER: And you are one of the 

siFners of the checks that ~o to pay those 

claims once they are approved? 

THE WITNESS: That's ri~ht. 

MR. MITCHELL: That ts ri~ht. 

THE MASTER: His testi_mony with 

respect to the claims or chcks, that is 

first hand knowledge. 

MR. MITCHELL: But I am precluded in 

showing how these chits for payment of 

claims get into the jackets. 

THE MASTER: No, ynuare not precluded 
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from that. What he dof!s not know is f.>lr')" 

~isely ho.w the chi.ts, as you call them, 

comes about, he assumes that someone applies 

to a welfare officer or commiss 4 oner or so¥w<:-

body and that somebody writes i.t out, but 

thst is not personal knowbd~e. 

MR. MITCHELL: Oh, I h1ve never conveyed 

that, Jud~e Meyers. I haven't asked him 

that, I asked him If that wasn't part of the 

packa~f'. 

THE MAS1.t..- Doesn't that hit the objec· 

t{on? 

't-fS. LEVATINO: Yes. Your Honor. 

MR. MITCHELL: I know the man hasn't 

been out there solic~tin~ those claims. I 

asked hfm as oart of that cl~im jacket, if 

there appeared in the claim jacket chits 

from somebody and tied it in, I thou~ht wit~ 

the welfare oroeedure. 

TijE MASTER: Well, you may oursue that. 

The objection simply wa~ Ms. Levatino did 

not understand that this witness had the 

knowled~e to testify how these llttle writtPn i 
i 

notes m 353 actually came ab~ut. 

an assumption on his part. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717.ANTEL.OPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 78401 

That :Ls 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

lJ 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

us; 

MR. MITCHELL: WPll, all right, I wi.ll 

try to --

THE MASTER: Then do we understand? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. 

THE MASTER: All rt~ht, now do you 

still have some bill you wish to make stsrt-

in~ at 229 because it has uot been ttade and 

this reporter can't make tt unless you 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Your Honor, I 

think I would like to offer as originally 

stated the material appearin~ on direct 

examination of this witness on October 6th, 

1975, on 299 of the record of the proceedings 

of the House, the Court of Impeachment on the 

trial of Jud~e Carrillo from 229 through and 

including 302. 

THE MASTER: All r:l.ght, now --

MR. MITCHELL: As a background for t~at 

object'on because, Your Honor, the very same 

people sitting here offered all of this 

testimony on direct including the chits, 

including all of the claim forms, including 

incidentally, I might add, testimony wherP 

the chits came from. 

THE MASTER : I am not sure what you 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 7840, 



2 

3 

c 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 
II 

IO I, 

II 
I 

12 I 
13 I 
1C 

15 

I6 

17 

18 
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-- -- - --- - --- _ __lZ_ :.!_~ 

are off~rfn~ ft for. 

MR. MITCHELL: I simply want it in thr 

record as re~ar~s the objections made by 

Counsel that there was no -- that thi~ wft-

neSR had no knowledgE' of the procpdure '-lhPn 

the truth of the matt~r is that is how I 

~ot the information. The testimony ~as 

solicited from him by t:.ese very J:U•oplP. 

THE MASTER: I thou~ht you just now 

a~rePd with my statement that this witnes~ 

did not have personal knowledge of how the 

little slips came about although he knew 

that they were delivered to his office. 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge, this witness 

answerPd under the 

THE MASTER: No, I jUJt thou~ht that 

at one time I made that statement and you 

said, of course, you are not undertakin~ to 

prove that with him, now are you taking thP -~ 
\ 

MR. MITCHELL: I am not undertaking to 

prove a specific chit in a specific folder. 

I am undertaking to prove the methodolo~y 

which he previously testffled involved a 

slip of paper and that slip r~ paper being 

executed by some welfar2 worker, county 
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125"'. 

official, Your Honor, or the commissioner. 

He so testified previously. 

I am not suggestin~ that he had personal 

knowled~e of a specific time, place and 

event of a chit, but the total package that 

goes to him includes that slip and that 

fits squarely with the procedur~. 

Now, Judge, maybe J can clarify it this 

way. I have been accused, my client has 

been accused of an abuse of the welfare 

system. The pu~pose for my offerin~ of this 

testimony is to show, if it please the 

court. there is a fixed determined system 

for the welfare payments in that county. 

Now, thPre is no way that we could 

have cut across that system. 

THE MASTER: But the objection came 

about, L think --

MR. MITCHELL: Judge, I am sorry I 

ever asked the question and I will withdraw 

it. I really don't even know where I stand 

on thP record. I will withdraw the ques-

tion. 

THE MASTER: But, I am trying to protect 

the record, Mr. MitchelL. 
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12 51~ ! 
·------------------------------------------~~--~ 

MR. M I'rCHE LL: I know, JudJ~:e!. I 
I 

2 THE MASTER: Do you still offer 229 

3 through pfth~r 301 or 302. and, if so, I 

4 want to know for what ourpose. 

s MR. MITCHELL: For the ourpose of show-

6 ing the bad faith of the ob1Pction, Jud~e, 

7 beca,Jse shE' asked th~ same Qllf' sti.on and 

8 esta~ltshed that methodology no less than 

9 stxtv days a~o and then stands up in this 

10 Court and takPs the pos!tfon that I shouldn't 

II ask thP quP s t: ,•n becausE" he doPsn' t have 

12 personal knowled~e when thP same QUPstion 

13 was put to the samE" wftn~ss in a different 

14 proceeding. That's all I wanted to offer 

IS it for. 

16 THE MASTER: Well, are yru undertaking 

17 

18 first hand knowled~e 

that hP knows of his j' 
how these slips ori~inat d? 

t~ prove by Mr. Meek 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 - ·-----·-- ------------------------------------ --- -------- -
------~----------------~------------------------------------------------- ' 
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MR. MITCHELL: We 11, y e s , in the 

12§5! 
context 

Judge Meyers, of the methodology of 

triggering the welfare program. I am not 

trying to authenticate the case of a 

specific chit going to a payment of a 

specific bill. My question is bottomed 

on the same question put to this same 

witness by counsel no less than sixty days 

ago. That is where I got my question. 

THE MASTER: That is testimony from 

you, but perhA~s you can ask your question 

again and we can hear the objection again. 

I think we have all lost sight of the 

direction this cross-examination is taking. 

Would you go back and see what the 

examination is and we will hear the 

objection and then make your bill, if you 

choose to do so? 

MR. MITCHELL: I will ask the question 

on page 301. 

THE WITNESS: Your Honor, if I may 

say something --

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

THE WITNESS: Mr. Mitchell seems to be 

under the misapprehension I stated definitely 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

in that testimony this situation, but I think 

if he reads that all and not just that one 

sentence, I am positive I have said I didn't 

know how, but I presumed that was it, and 

MR. MITCHELL: Now that I have been 

educated by everybody, would you look at 

page 3Jl? 

8 A I don't have it. You also accuse me of being 

9 anti-welfare, which I don't believe is the case, 

10 but there is more of those series of questions. 

11 Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) Let me hand you page 301, 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

and reading from that, "would you describe to 

the members of this Court how that system 

works in Duval County?" And your answer is, 

"Well, it is very informal. You mentioned 

attending commissioners court, things like that 

rarely come up before the court. They are 

handled independently of the court as a rule by 

the individual commissioners, county judge and 

other officials in the county." 

And. then the next question, "All right. would 

you describe to us, Mr. Meek, let's just use an 

example of Mrs. Jones or Mr. Smith --" 

MS. LEVATINO: Your Honor, I think if 

counsel is going to read this into the 
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record, I would ask that he read the entire 

2 thing. 

3 THE MASTER: You did make an omission 

4 in the reading. The q~estion was, "All 

5 right. Would you describe to us, Mr. Meek 

6 with counsel's permission, could you 

7 let•s just use as an example of a Mrs. Jones 

8 or Mr. Smith, who are ln need of food or 

9 medical attention. How would they go about 

10 it?" 

11 

12 Q And your answer was, "They would approach their 

13 commissioner or some other county official or some 

14 welfare worker and state their case and they would 

15 be given a slip of paper -- if it were groceries, 

16 they needed to go to get a certain amount of 

17 groceries or to see a doctor or hospitalization, 

18 just as informal as that." 

19 Then, the next question, "Okay. So a needy 

20 person, then, would obtain a slip of paper from 

21 one of the commissioners or from some other person 

22 entitled to issue such and they would take that 

23 to whomever they needed to see, is that correct?" 

24 And your answer was, "That •s correct, sir." 

25 Is that correct, Mr. Meek? 

----ir--------------------------------------------------------------1--
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A That is correct as I stated it there. I am 

2 guessing as to the procedure. 

3 Q But that is what you testified there? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q Then, going further, "Now, what does that person 

6 

7 

8 

do with that piece of paper after he performs 

the services or gives the goo~ to the needy 

person?" Did I read that correctly? 

9 A Right. 

10 Q And your answer was, "He usually includes that 

11 with the sales sllp that he uses to bill the 

12 county for their money." 

13 Then, continuing, "Okay. so, if I was going 

14 to give Mr. Jones or Mrs. Smith, or whoever, 

15 ten dollars worth of groceries, would I take 

16 this slip and attach it with the bill and send 

17 it back to that same commissioner or to your 

18 office or where to get my money?" 

19 Are you following where I am on page 302? 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q And then your answer was, "The bill would be sent 

22 to my office in the form that you have stated. 11 

23 Now, would you please turn over to page 353. 

24 Do you recall about that time in the record there 

25 were introduced the very exhibits we are talking 

I 
--~~-----------------------------~-
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about now and appearing on page 351 of Exhibit 

2 H-1-(1) to (38), being subdivisions of 

3 Examiner's Exhibit E-55? 

4 A 302? 

s Q Yes, where it was marked for identification as 

6 

7 

H-1 -- (38), and that is the one in this record 

of Examiner's Exhibit 55, H-1-(?)(38), are you 

8 following me? 

s A Yes. 

w Q At that time, do you recall the slips appearing 

II on H-1-(2) were inc 'uded in that offer? 

12 A No, I don't recall that. We have thousands of 

13 these; I don't remember. 

14 Q Well, the record is incorrect, if it shows these 

IS slips, is that your testimony? 

16 A Mr. Mitchell, I could not possibly have sworn that 

17 is the way those things happened. The informality 

18 of affairs in Duval County is just that and I 

19 know George Parr used to give slips of paper to 

20 get a job for a man or to reduce his taxes. 

21 Q My inquiry was, that page originates from the 

22 person to the person in the welfare that it 

23 goes to, is that correct? 

24 A Yes. 

25 THE MASTER: Breall: time, Mr. Mitchell. 
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We will be in recess for 15 minutes 

2 
(Short recess taken.) 

3 

4 THE MAS'IE R: You may proceed, Mr. 

5 Mitchell. 

6 Q Mr. Meek, can you give us an estimate of what the 

7 welfare budget was in Duval Cou~ty in 1974? 

8 A It was -- oh, that is last year? 

9 Q Yes, sir. 

w A I believe it was around one hundred fifty or sixty 

11 thousani dollars. 

12 Q May I ask you, please, to examine the claims 

13 

14 

constituting Exhibit 55, H-1-(1) and tell us if 

any of those are dated beyond December, 1974? 

15 A What exhibit? 

16 Q Examiner's Exhibit 55. 

17 A Which ones doyou want me to examine? 

n Q All of them. I want something to verify there 

19 are none that go beyond December, 1974. 

~ A Go beyond 174 to '75, is that what you mean? 

21 Q Right. 

~ A Without looking, I am pretty sure you are correct. 

23 

24 

25 

THE MASTER: Well, for the record, of 

course, the exhibits are in evidence and 

speak for themselves. I have looked and 
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don•t find any. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Judge. 

THE MASTER: Certainly they appear to be 

in order by dates almost exactly, starting 

with 1970 and going well into 1974. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you. 

MS. LEVATINO: For the purpose of the 

record, these claims were introduced in 

chronological order. 

THE MASTER: That last check is dated 

December, 197!.;. 

12 Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) So, the answer would be --

13 A Yes, that is correct. I think we excluded 175. 

14 Q That was the reason I put the question to you, 

15 because I believe you so indicated on your prior 

16 teat 1mony? 

11 A Yes. 

U Q And tor the record, there is none past December, 

19 1974? 

20 A Correct. 

21 ~ Let me ask you this. I notice -- now, referring 

22 again to page 353, that is H-1-(2), and I am going 

23 to ask you some questions about those little slips. 

24 A What page is that? 

~ Q 353 in Examiner•s Exhibit 55. 
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'I All right. 

2 q According to your answer previously •Lven, the 

3 

4 

5 

commissioners of the various precincta would be 

authorized to approve an ap~licant fd~ some 

welfare benefits or relief? 

6 A That is my understanding. 

7 Q. It is your understanding, not ba.,ed on personal 

8 know ledge, but the me thode uaed in thil county? 

9 A That is right • 

10 Q And in addition, I suppose, the offic,,_al welfare 

11 officer, Mrs. DeLeo... she has that aut;hori ty? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q And you indica ted earlier there would' be other 

14 

15 

officials, and I asked you, I believe, if the 

deputy sheriff was one of those officials? 

16 A Well, it is not beyond the realm of pcssibility. 

17 Q Do'you know whether or not the commissioners court 

18 would designate who would be approved officials 

19 and that is how we determine that, do~u know that 

20 of ,your own personal knowledge? 

21 i lio, I don rt recall that. I don •t recall hearing 

22 them designate any specific person, b~t it is 

23 within their authority to do so. 

u Q And I believe you testified that these· welfare 

25 claims follow the same procedure as do'the claims 
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follow the same procedure as do the claims for 

2 payments we discussed yesterday? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q so they do go before the commissioners court and 

5 this 1s reviewed by the court? 

6 A Yes. 

1 ~ And would it be a valid assumption, tf it was a 

8 slip of a person not qualified by an official 

9 person, that the commtss1oners court would deny 

10 that claim? 

ll A r they recognized i .. as an unauthorized person, 

12 but I doubt 1f they would. 

13 ~ But you act on the commissioners sitting in sees tor, 

14 your office does? 

IS A Yes. 

16 Q And you do not issue checks or warrants unless 

17 you are so instructed by the commissioners court? 

u A Correct. 

19 Q And based on whatever evidence 1t hears on any 

210 given claim? 

~ A Correct. 

22 Q And so the record is abundantly clear, is 1 t this 

23 

24 

25 

same commissioners court you told us about, which 

is composed of' four commissioners and county judge 

Archer Parr at that time? 
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A Yes. 

2 Q And Mr.Ramiro Carrillo being a commtssion of 

3 Precinct 3? 

4 A Yes. 

s Q And only one of the four commissioners? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q And only according to the testimony, one of the 

8 various and sundry persons authorized to 

9 initiate the welfare payment? 

10 A That is right. 

11 Q Now, if you would, '"'fer with me to one more --

12 looking at page 358 of Exhibit 55, please, Mr. 

13 Meek. 

14 A All right. 

15 

16 

17 

J8 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

MR.MITCHELL: Now, I will ask you, 

counsel, I assume, and I am going to try 

to state this corli!ICtly, that those sales 

slips are a part of the input to a claim 

on the preceding page, H-1-(3), is that 

correct? 

MS. LEVATINO: Yes, sir. 

Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) Do you see those slips, Mr. 

Meek? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q All right. Now, Mr. Meek, it would appear those 
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sales slip appearing on 358, H-1-(3), are sales 

slips made out by the Cash Store, Abel, and 

that is Abel Ysaguirre, it seems to be the same 

signature? 

A I imagine so. 

Q And it appears that Cash Store by Abel, evidences 

delivery of groceries to a Mr. G~iterrez and 

appears to be groceries for twenty dollars? 

A Correct. 

Q And so on on each of those sales slips? 

A Correct. 

Q And those sales slips signed by the ;ash Store 

with the date and person to whom they were 

delivered and identified as groceries would be 

part of the claim jacket presented to the 

commissioners court and before the court when it 

acted'? 

A That is correct. 

Q All right. 

MR. MITCHELL: How, counsel, I will 

ask one more question, and maybe you can 

assist me. 

Does the material on page 361, 

do they constitute part of the input of 

the sales slips appearing on 358, H-1-(3)? 
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MS. LEVATINO: No, on page 60, we begin 

2 with another claim jacket, H-1- ( 4). 

3 MR. MITCHELL: All right. 

4 Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) Are there claims that are made 

s and paid by the county welfare when there are not 

6 the accompanying little slips? 

7 A Yes, I imagine there are some. ~don't recall any 

8 instances, but 

9 Q That one appearing on page 357 would appear to be 

10 one, would it not? 

II A Yes, that is right. 

12 Q So that the record is complete, the documentation 

13 caid or could not include the little chits or 

14 sales slips, the official order from the welfare 

IS and the sales slip from the grocery store, in 

16 this case? 

" A That is right. 

18 Q And the identifying tape by Mr. Hinojosa, and that 

19 is all put in the jacket and all presented to the 

20 commissioners court? 

21 A Of course, that adding machine slip Mr. Hinojosa 

22 attaches that for his own convenience. That is not 

23 necessarily in every jacket. 

24 Q I understand. 

25 A That is not an official part of it. 
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Q And that is made by your assistant as a pmt of the 

2 procedure? 

3 A That is right. 

4 Q Now, one other question. As in the claims for 

5 payment we talked about yesterday for services 

6 and mate rial, Mr. Meek, is there a card file made 

7 up of the payees or recipients of all of these 

8 welfare checks? 

9 A Yes, except in the case -- if we know that someone 

10 has done a special job for the county and it is 

11 a one-shot proposi~lon, we don•t necessadly make 

12 a card; however, his name is entered into a ledger. 

13 Q Do you have a card of the type you produced 

14 yesterday for Roberto Elizondo? 

15 A Yes. 

16 Q Do you ha11e a card on file in your office for Mr. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

John Salinas -- could you -- is there a central 

record in your office to go to to see if Mr. 

Salinas received welfare payments and show the 

amount of them and the number or them? 

U A Not if it came through the welfare office, no. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

I mean, if you were just a name on a sales slip 

that had received twenty dollars worth or 

groceriea, we would not have any lndex card on him 

or any other record. We would not make out a 
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check directly to him. 

2 Q You answered that the first step in the proceeding 

3 of the claim is to examine the bills to see if the 

4 recipient has been previously paid welfare payments 

5 or is otherwise qualified. 

6 Do you maintain a record for that purpose? 

7 A Not on welfare. We pay no cash to welfare 

8 recipients. 

9 Q All right. That leads to another question. I am 

10 not just asking th.ese to be inquisi t1ve. 

11 The welfare department makes whatever 

12 screening they have to make on the cards appearing 

13 in the documentation here? 

14 A That is correct. 

~ Q And that is a form, and again referring you to 

16 Exhibit 55, page 351, please, sir, so that the 

17 record is clear, that is the type of form, 

18 H-1-(l) that is printed at the top with Duval 

19 County Courthouse official seal, is that what 

20 we are talking about? 

21 A Yes. 

~ Q Do you know of your own personal knowledge what 

23 

24 

25 

any department screening -- for example, I know 

this one is signed Ramiro Carrillo over the 

printed signature of Mrs. Elvira DeLeon. Do you 
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'7 

know whether or not there is any inner department 

2 screening as to tile Duval county welfare department 

3 as to the persons listed there for the benefit? 

Do you have any knowledge of that? 

s A You lost me there again, Mr. Mitchell. I don't 

6 quite follow you on that. 

7 Q Is there any -- is there any inner department or 

8 welfare department screening on these applicants? 

9 A Screening, did you say? 

10 Q Yes, to determine their eligibility. 

11 A Not in Duval County. They wouldn't go to that 

12 trouble. 

13 ~ I notice in prior testimony that there are two 

14 sources of welfare payments, one being the 

15 I believe the federal program that is located 

16 over at --

17 A The bank building? 

n Q Yes, sir. 

19 A That is the state, actually. There is -- there are 

20 some federal welfare programs, too. I don't know 

21 just what they consist or. 

~ Q And those, of course, are administered in the same 

23 area but by different agencies and not paid by the 

24 commissioners cour~ 

25 A That•s right, there is no connection there whatsoeve • 
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Q There is no connection as regards to payment but 

2 you don•t, of your own personal knowledge, know 

3 whether th~re is an inner connection as between 

4 those two agencies, that is, the state and the 

5 federal, as regards the interchange of information 

6 on the applicants? 

7 A Between the state and federal ar.d the county? 

8 Q Right. 

9 A I would very much be surprised if there was, but 

10 I can•t say that there isn•t. 

11 That is what I am advocating now, I think 

12 there should be. 

13 Q Did you receive a letter from the Attorney 

14 General's office prior to coming here to testify? 

15 A Yes, I believe I did. 

16 Q Do you have a copy of it with you? 

17 A No, I don•t. It was merely stating that the--

18 I'm afraid I would have to come back here and 

19 testify some more. 

20 MR. MITCHELL: Yes, may I -- I offered 

21 one previously, Your Honor, that -- Lord 

22 knows where it is. 

23 
(Discussion ott the record.) 

24 

~ Q I will hand you what has been marked as Exhibit 
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, ..... ..,, 

R-44 which appears to be a letter on the heading 

2 of the Attorney General of ~xas signed by 

3 Elizabeth Levatino and ask you if you have 

4 received a letter of that type, and or the content? 

s You may take a moment to read it. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

(Handed to the witness.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Per.haps counsel will 

stipulate that a letter was sent to him, 

Judge, of that type. I think it should be 

in thE· recor.:!. 

12 A Yes, I recel ved a l:!tter like this. I had already 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

25 

been subpoe~aed, however. 

THE MASTER: He requested a stipulation 

that ~u sent such a letter. I suppose that 

is made unnecessary, now. 

MS. LEVATINO: I will so stipulate; 

I am sorry, I didn't hear you, counsel. 

MR. MITCHELL: I may be able to help 

you if I show you what I am talking about. 

I am sorry, counsel, it is Exhibit R-44. 

MS. LEVATINO: I stipulate to that, 

no obJection. 

HR. MITCHELL: May I have a request, 

Your Honor, that counsel state to the record 
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17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

which witnesses the letter was written to? 

THE MASTER: Well, she does not -- she 

is under no obligation to. If she wishes 

to, she may. 

MS. LEVATINO: I wish not to at this 

time. 

MR. MITCHELL: All r i g,:1 t. At any rate, 

Your Honor, we offer R-44. 

THE MASTER: Well, it is admitted 

MS. LEVATINO: Excuse me. 

THE MASTE~: Go ahead if you have an 

objection. 

MS. LEVATINO: My objection would be, 

I don•t see the relevancy of R-44 as it is 

not addressed to this witness. He said he 

received a similar one and I don't see the 

rele~cy to this proceeding. 

THE MASTER: What is the relevancyl 

I don't see lt either. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, the relevancy --

I thought -- I thought we had crossed that 

bridge, but if not, the relevancy, Your 

Honor, it states -- it is a letter to the 

from the Attorney General t~ each and every 

witness --
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THE MASTER: No, it is a letter from 

the Attorney General to Mr. Elizondo which 

he says he received a similar letter. 

MR. MITCHELL: Correct. 

THE MASTER: So you can 't get each and 

every witness in there yet. And, so, now, 

but go ahead, it is a letter to Mr. -- it 

is similar to the letter that Mr. Meek 

rece1 ved. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, and it states, 

"I had hoped 1 would not have to ask for 

your assistance in appearing again as a 

witness, however, it appears that the 

attorneys for Judge Carrillo will not 

stipulate to the use of the record of 

testimony in the Senate Impeachment trial 

before the Judicial Qualifications 

Commission. Therefore, it will probably 

be necessary for you to testify before the 

Master in that proceeding at some date 

after November the 3rd, 1975. 

"In the very near future you may 

be subpoenaed to testify. We may have to 

meet ahead of time to disc·~ss the 

proceedings. Either Mr. John W.Odam, who 
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16 
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19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

you met during the impeachment proceedings 

in the Senate or I will contact you about 

that .1a t te r. 

"Please do not hesitate to 

conta~t Mr. Odam or myself if you have any 

questlons. Again, thanking you so much tor 

your participation, I certt inly look forward 

to seeing you again as we prepare for this 

important undertaking for the Judicial 

Qualie"ications ·ommission of Texas." 

We sQy it is irrelevant, 

it is calculated at the very outset to 

creat~ hostilitybetween the witness and 

couns13l, and counse 1 is d otng no more than 

he has the right to do under law and that 

is to have the witness produce evidence and 

to stand on the burden fixed by the law, 

Your Honor, and we think it is relevant. 

THE MASTER: Your objection is 

sus11ined. 

MR. MITCHELL: We offer it for the 

bill. 

THE MASTER : Sure • 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, Judge, may I 

take just a moment. 
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12 

{Discussion off the record.) 
2 

3 Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) Mr. Meek, do you know who has 

4 the custody of the minutes of the meetings of the 

5 commissioners court of Duval County presently? 

6 A The county clerk. 

7 Q The county clerk? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q And that would be whom, please, sir? 

10 A Mr. Alberto Garcia. 

11 Q Alberto? 

12 A Yes. 

13 MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, pass the 

14 witness. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

BY MS , LEYATII! 0 : 
19 

20 Q Mr. Meek, I have just one question for you in 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

response to Mr. Mitchell's questions. When you 

indicated that the material contained in Examiner's 

Exhibit 55, in one of the subdi~ions, for example, 

I will show you, refer to this H-1-(1) on page 

351? 
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A 3511 

2 Q 351, the first page of Examiner's Exhibit 55. 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q You testified that the material identified &8 

s Duval county welfare department slip would be 

8 contained in the claim jacket as well as what 

7 looks llke a store invoice, as we\1 a8 on some 

8 occasions the material found on page 353 identified 

9 as H-1-(2), identified as individual slips or 

10 papsr? 

11 A Yes. 

12 " Au thor iz ing ce r ta ln k lnd s of we 1 fare? 

13 A Yes. 

It Q If you rece~ved a claim form which consisted only 

15 ot material the item on page 351, as the store 

16 tnvolce, wo•tld you submit a claim to the 

17 commissione .·s court based just on that material 

II alone? 

19 A You •re talking about just a sales slip alone? 

20 Q Yes, sir. 

11 A No, without any supporting evidence, that it was 

welfare authorized, we wouldn't pay it. 

m Q What type or supporting evidence would you require? 

u A Well, for instance, this regular welfare department 

25 authorization. Now, we might pay that without a 
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sales slip, but not the other way around. 

2 Q If you received a sales slip from the store, and 

3 some of these white slips identified as individual 

4 long white slips originally, would you -- pardon 

s me, if you received the sales slip plus the white 

6 slip, would that be enough authorization to 

7 present the claim to the commissioners court? 

8 A Now, what do you refer to as the white slip? 

9 Q I refer on page 353, Examiner's Exhibit 55, on 

10 the right-hand side of that page that series of 

11 as Mr. Mitchell exp~~ !ned, individual slips 

12 stating Cash Store --

13 THE MASTER: For the record, do you 

14 mean the handwritten notes? 

15 Q The handwritten notes, yes. 

16 A Yes, I think we would, probably, in most cases 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

which testifies to the informality of affairs in 

Duval County. If we could make out the name of 

the signer of the handwritten slip, if it was a 

commissioner, for instance• authorizing that, we 

would pay it. 

. Q A 11 right. 

THE MAS'lER: Let me ask a question: 

Can you make out what appears to be the 

initials of the hadwritten slips on page 353? 
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THE WITNESS: No, I am not familiar 

2 with them, Your Honor. 

3 Q (By Ms. Levatino:) If yo11 could not, as you say 

4 you are not familiar with these, wo11ld you --

s pardon ~e, on the items we are referring to on 

6 page 353 of Examiner's Exh~t 55, if you could 

7 not make o11t those names or initi9ls of the person 

8 authorizing it, would yo11 su~mit that claim to 

9 the commissioners court? 

10 A No. 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

MS. LEVA· ... ..:NO: No further questions. 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 

Q Mr. Meek, as a matter of fact, you, I believe, 

have testified earlier in connection with other 

claims if there were any doubt in yo11r mind or 

the minds of your staff collectively, arrived at 

as to the validity of any claims you wo11ld 

certainly set them aside and not Sllbmit them? 

A Well, that•s correct. If they are not -- if the 

bill wasn•t complete, or if there was some lack 

of signature on it. 
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1?70 

Q All right. And --

2 A When I say I don•t·recognize the signature, my 

3 assistant is more familiar with most of them. 

4 Q And the correlary to that would be correct, you 

5 never have knowingly ever submitted a claim to 

6 the commissloners court which you thought to be 

7 fraudulent or improperly made? 

8 A That 's right. 

9 Q Let me ask ~IOU still another question: We asked 

10 you earlier as regards the designation or the 

11 persons who receive - requests from welfare 

12 applicants, and I believe your testimony was, and 

13 I don•t want to misstate your answer, that you 

14 I believe you testified that the commissioners 

IS court determined -- the commissioners court 

16 determined those persons from time to time? 

17 A That's right. 

18 Q Do you know in addition that when they DBde the 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

determination or who would receive the -- or who 

would be eligible to receive these requests from 

prospective welfare applicants, that they also 

determine the amounts that that person could 

adhere or receive per month. 

Do you know whether or not that is also a 

part of the commissioners courts •s determination? 
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A Mr. Mitchell, I hesitate because they often make 

2 statements in the commissioners court as to what 

3 things like that and they are never adhered to at 

4 all. 

s Q All right. For example --

6 A so, in other words, there is not very strict 

7 budget control as far as the com~1ssioners are 

8 concerned, They decide one time to cut down on 

9 this andcut down on that and by the next meeting, 

10 they have forgotten it. 

11 I am not trying v) indict them for that, but 

12 that is the informality of the --

13 Q I am not trying to indict them, either. I am 

14 really mainly interested in the workings. I 

15 believe you are answering the questions that is, 

16 that the commissioners court do concern themselves 

17 with the limit that each person has to -- that he 

18 can initiate on behalf of the applicant, say --

19 if the testimony showed, tor example, that Judge 

20 Carrillo was one of the pereons designated by the 

21 commissioners court to whoa applicants of the 

welfare could go, that wouldn't be out of the 

23 ordinary? 

24 .A No. 

~ Q And if the evidence shows that he had a credit of 
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three hundred dollars each month for these people, 

2 would that be out of the ordinary? 

3 A That •s risht. 

4 Q Or six hundred or a thousand? 

s A Tha t 's cor re c t • 

6 Q And I think you told us yesterday that the 

7 commissioners court met regularly every month? 

8 A That • s r i gh t • 

9 Q And that certainly at any given month, it giveth 

10 and it certainly could taketh away, am I right, 

11 Mr. Meek? 

12 A That's right. 

13 Q So if there were any abuse by any person, e1 ther 

14 as to the amount or to the persons of the 

15 commissioners court, at least in theory, whether 

16 in practice or not, they would have almost a 

17 monthly look at that situation? 

18 A That's right. 

19 Q By makins a simple examination of the claims 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

presented to it for payment? 

A That•s correct. I would like to amend the 

first part of my answer to your question. However, 

you asked me if I ever paid anything that I knew 

to be fraudulent. Well, I haven't, but I had 

suspected a lot of them. 
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I paid some that I strongly suspected were 

2 fraudulent. I am not talking about welfare, I 

3 am talking about anything, any bill that came in. 

4 Q And did you make proper notice of your feelings to, 

5 or your notions or ideas to the commissioners 

6 court? 

7 A I usually confide to myself because it doesn •t 

8 do much good. 

9 Q And, of course, Judge Carrillo, I don't believe, 

10 has ever sat on a commissioners court? 

11 A No, he hasn •t. 

12 Q And I believe at one time he was a law enforcement- -

13 he was the county attorney? 

14 A That •s right. 

15 Q. Did you ever tell him? I think that was many 

16 years ago, seven or eight or ten years ago, did 

17 you ever communicate to him your suspicion that 

18 there might be some improper welfare applicants? 

19 A- No, I don •t think there were any that improper, 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

and especially welfare. I mean who can keep 

track of welfare,not only in Duval :ounty, but 

in the whole country • 

MR. MITCHELL: I 18lieve that 1 s all. 

MS. LEVATINO: Your Honor, I have no 

further questions of this witness at this 
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time, but I believe Mr. Odam would like to 

2 make a statement. 

3 MR. ODAM: Your Honor, yesterday I 

4 slowed down and labored a little bit on 

5 Exhibit E-~4 through E-50 to which there 

6 was an objection made and sustained at tnt 

7 time. I would like to attempt to reintro-

8 duce into evidence at this time Exhibits 

9 E-44 through E-50 by way of this witness 

10 rather than having him recalled at a later 

11 time. 

12 THE MASTER: All right. 

13 

14 

15 

16 
BY MR. ODAM: 

17 

18 Q Mr. Meek, I show you what has been marked as 

19 Examiner's Exhibit E-44 through E-50 and ask you 

20 to look at those just a moment to refresh your 

21 memory from yesterday. 

22 
(Handed to witness.) 

23 

24 Q I believe your testimony yes11rday was that these 

25 are exhibits or are replicas for claims tor 
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payment which were placed on file in your office 

2 which were ultimately submitted to the county 

3 commissioners court, is that correct? 

4 A That is right. 

5 Q What you are looking at there before you are 

6 not originals, but Xerox copies, is that correct? 

7 A That is correct. 

8 ~ Do you know where the originals of those are? 

9 A Frankly, I don•t. I think in Austin. 

10 Q Have you had the opportunity since yesterday to 

II consult with Mr. Hi1. josa as to where the originals 

12 might be? 

13 A No, but when we were looking for them several 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

days ago, he is very positive that he took them 

to Austin and I am, too, as far as that goes, but 

whether he brought them back, I think -- well, I 

don't know whether he brought them back or not, 

or whether they remained up there. 

The material he brought back, he kept 

separated in a box and not too long ago one of 

the Rangers, Mr. Martinez, came up searching for 

something and he took the whole box with him back 

to the Attorney General's taak force quarters 

there in San Diego and they can't find them up 

there. 
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Q so, really, you don't know where the originals 

2 are? 

3 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A N~, I really don•t. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, at this time I 

would offer in evidence Exhibits E-44 through 

E-50, xerox copies of them. 

MR. MITCHELL: If the court will 

recal~, I previously objected on four 

grounds; one, not properly authenticated; 

two, hearsay; the best evidence rule and 

lack of personal knowledge, and I b~eve 

the Court overruled all~ the objections 

except the best evidence and I reassert 

all of those objections again today, 

Judge Meyers. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, this witness has 

stated today as he doee not know where the 

originals were and at page 1164 of this 

transcript the Court says, the hearsay 

objection is overruled and the authenticatior 

is overruled and his testimony is, he cannot 

find the originals. 

That is his testimony again 

today, that he cannot find the originals. 

I think that I confused the matter somewhat 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

by making the -- by my own statements, making 

it reflect well, Mr. Mitchell said, are 

these part of the originals that were 

introduced in the trial, there was confusion 

at that point. 

His testimony is, then, and now, 

he doesn't know where the 'riginals are. 

THE MASTER: I di•J not think yesterday 

you had sufficiently ~eloped the record to 

show the unavailability of the originals. 

There may have been some talk about he 

didn't know where they were, but I had 

thougnt the record was not clear enough and 

that is exactly what I mean when I say--

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, I understand. 

•rHE MASTER: When I said, develop it, 

but now there is some confusion in the 

record because I don•t know -- yesterday 

you were referring to E-53 through -- I 

mean E-43 through E-50, were you not? 

say 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Or somebody was. 

MR. ODAM: At the top of that page, 

E-43, and I might have 

THE MASTER: And 1 had E-43 as being 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

admitted but then I ahanged it, I ahanged 

my notes to show it as excluded, but I 

think it is in evidence. would you aheak 

the record, please? 

MR. ODAM: And again, I failed to pick 

it up. Yesterday, I referred to E-43 through 

E-50 and when I picked the~ up awhile ago, 

going through the exhi~lts, I missed this 

piece of paper and I would include today as 

I did yesterday, which is a copy, another 

claim for payw,nt. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

THE MASTER: But you need to develop 

it with respect to E-43. 

BY MR. ODAM: 

~ Q Mr. Meek, E-43, can you identify that for the 

21 record? 

22 ,, Yes, I can. 

~ Q What is E-43? 

24 A It is a claim made by Roberto Elizondo for $225. 

~ Q And what is your testimony as to the availability 
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of the original copy of this, do you know where 

2 the original cdpy is? 

3 A No, and I would like to make -- emphasize the 

4 fao t that the original copies were available 

5 as testified to by the copy, simply because our 

6 county has a reputation for losing records, they 

7 are not always available. 

8 I want to make it perfectly clear that those 

9 records were not lost. 

10 Q At one time did you have the origind.s? 

11 A That 1 s right. 

12 <t From which you made copies? 

13 A There has been nothing out of my office that I 

14 haven't been able to produce. 

IS Q Yes, sir. 

16 MR. MITCHELL: May I ask a question on 

17 voir dire, Your Honor? 

18 THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

19 

20 

21 VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION 

22 
BY MR. MITCHELL: 

23 

24 Q Did you testify earlier, Mr. Meek, that the 

25 originals of the exhibits ¥3re delivered to the 
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Attorney General's staff? 

2 A No, I said they were the ones that were taken to 

3 Austin by my assistant and I don't know whether 

4 they were turned over at that time. I think he 

5 brought them home, that is his recolls:ltion, at 

6 least, and then they were picked up later by 

7 the Attorney General's men. 

B Q Yes, sir. 

9 A And they are somewhere between their office here 

10 and either the impeachment hearing people in Austin 

II or the Attorney Gen~- l 1s office because we don't 

12 have them. 

13 MR. MITCHELL: We renew our objection, 

14 Judge. 

15 MR. ODAM: May I ask one further 

16 question of this witness, Your Honor? 

17 THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

18 

19 

20 

21 
BY MR. ODAM: 

22 

~ Q For whom would the Attorney General's office, 

24 

25 

who picked these up with respect to the House 

impeachment proceedings, do you know who that was 
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that you just referred to? 

2 A At the impeachment proceedings? 

3 Q Yes, I'm not talking about the Senate, but back at 

4 the House Committee where these were marked as 

5 Exhibits 30,et ~tera. 

6 A Was that the Select Committee? 

7 Q Yes, s lr. 

8 A You say, do I know who picked them up? 

9 Q With the Attorney General's office, you made the 

10 response to Mr. Mitchell, ~said someone with the 

11 Attorney General's ~~flee and I was just curious 

12 as to who it was. 

13 A I was referring, I think, to the -- either -- the 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

Select Committee had them or he brought them back 

and were turned over to Mr. Martinez, the Ranger, 

who came up to the office, who has been in and out 

of our office and took them over to the law library 

where your headquarters are over there. 

MR. MITCHELL: ~at is the task force 

headquarters? 

A That•s right, and they have a recollection of that, 

but they canrt locate the --haven't been able to 

locate the originals. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, again I would 

offer into evidence E-43 through E-50 and as 
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6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 ?01 

the best evidence rule, I would state that 

the witne as cannot find the origiJals and 

I know I am not testifying, but since 

yesterday, I made an attempt to locate the 

originals and all that we seem to have 

available generally are Xerox copies at this 

point, which this witness has identified 

the Xerox copies and I appreciate his candor 

in wanting to state that Duval Co~y had 

these originals. 

I ~~1nk that is what his concern 

was, and I offered them into evidence, 

Exhibits E--43 through E-50. 

THE MASTER: The suggestion, is, 

though, they are not unavailable since your 

office has them. Now, I don't question 

your representation, but the record is still 

not clear on the unavailability of the 

originals. 

Obviously, if you had them, they 

are not unavailable to you. 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir, and to that, I 

say I checked with the people 

THE MASTER: But for the record, don•t 

you t~ink you have to testify to that under 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 ?0? 

oath? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. Well, yes, sir, an 

I do so at this t i ·1e. 

THE MASTER: Well, l~t's get through 

with this witness and if you wish to, you 

can 

MR. ODAM All right. 

THE MASTER: You certainly are fi:'ee to 

take the stand, but the best evidence 

judgment has been made. Incidentally, I do 

not agree witL it, with respect to Xerox 

not your personal objection, I don't agree 

with the law of the best evidence as it 

stands now wtth our 20th century method of 

copying things. It is an old objection 

that ought to be modified by the appellate 

court. 

As far as I know, it has not been 

and as the record stands, it seems to me you 

have not proved the unavailability of the 

originals. 

MR. ODAM: All right, sir. Well, I 

would --

THE MASTER: Because the thrust of 

this witness• testimon~ is that you have them, 
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I think. 

MR. ODAM: I would pass the witness. 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, Your Honor, 

my original objection, Judge Meyers, was 

because these documents were executed by a 

previous witness who chose to plead the 

Fifth Amendment as the Co1.rt recalled, and 

they were excluded on the objection of 

improper authentication at that time, and 

I think correctly stated. 

Th~-lafter, this witness was 

brought in and a procedure was established 

by counsel and I assumed I am trying to 

read the court•s mind, based upon that 

predicate testimony, the Court overruled 

the authentication objection and the hearsay, 

and sustained the best evidence. 

I excepted, of course, the Court's 

action and if the Court's action now is 

based on the best evidence rule, is exdud1ng 

them, I, having already objected to the 

hearsay and non-authentication, and those 

objections overruled, I will withdraw the 

best evidence objection. 

THE MASTER: Then, they are admitted. 
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MR. MITCHELL: All right, but stand on 

my exception to the Court•s action in 

overruling the --

THE MASTER: The authentication and 

hearsay. 

MR. MITCHELL: And the hearsay, that's 

right, Ju~ Meyers, and thP reason for that, 

Your Honor, ~that I bnlieve the statute 

provides that microfilm copies, Xerox cqies 

and accurate reproductions would be 

admissible if T am reading the statute 

correctly. 

THE MASTER: I d14 not know there was 

such a s tat u te • 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. 

THE MASTER: Passed when? 

MR. MITCHELL: And again, I have a 

great deal of commitment to this record. 

I believe the statute provides that the 

photostatic, microfilm, et cetera, would be 

admissible and not subject to the best 

evidence rule and I certainly want --

THE MASTER: I certainly approve that 

statute. I was unfamiliar with it. 

MR. ODAM: Excuse me. I am familiar 
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with it and it says that they are 

l~oduced into evidence when the originals 

the evidence is unavailable and it was 

passed in --

MR. MITCHELL: The best evidence rule, 

I think we owe it to the record --

THE MASTER: You have waived best 

evidence? 

MR. MITCHELL: That's right. 

THE MASTER: They are admitted. 

MR. MITCh~LL: I do not, of course, 

admit the truthfulness as the Court knows. 

Thank you, Judge Meyers. 

MR. ODAM: Pass the witness. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 7B40t 



-+--- _1296 

·i 
HR. HtTCHf:LL: I ~nn' t hf'l i f'Vf' I tua Vf' 

I 
2 ;I 

~ I 
3 

II • !I 
s II 

:l a wttnt!R!t or do you want him av11ilablf'? 

• I :I MR. ODAH: Your Honor. t say thts to 

!I 
7 

II • I· 
11 

9 

II 
10 

II 
ll !I 

THE MASTER: Excf'~t th~ standin~ of 

thf'ID. ,, 
•' 

12 
I MR. ODAH: Yf'R, in lfllht of that, I 

13 

lt H~ek, which, "ince th~rf' was no objection 

IS at that time. I would presume now I will 

II not hav• tn call him, sincp t~P was no 

17 objf'Ct~on. That, of cour""· is up to Mr. 

II Httcht>ll. 

It MR. HITCqELL: That do~~n't necessarily 

ID follow. If hP do~sn't hftv~ the witness on 

II the stand, thf' record would be lPft to a 

a: comparison of those admittf'd and offf'r~d 

II a~ainst thf' questioned st2natur~. and I 

2t think I don't want to mislPad Counsel, but 

2S I would like to havf' thf'm authenticated at 

---tt----------------------
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thit~; ttmE>. 

2 MR. ODAM: WP can do that right now 

3 w1th this witnPS9 on thBP chE>cks, but this 

4 tR if it is all ri~ht with thE' Court, I 

5 will do that, 

6 MR. MITCHELL: YPR, and I would not 

7 object to thPir bE>tn~ irrE>levant at thts 

8 time, Your Honor, and this is in deferencP 

9 to true authentication by this witness. 

10 MR. ODAM: May I havp 1uRt a minute, 

11 Your Honor? 

12 THE MASTER: Yes, Rir. 

13 MR. MITCHELL: May I ask the witness 

14 a question, Jud~e. while Counsel is lookin~ 

IS those U'P? 

16 THE MASTE R: Yes, str. 

17 

18 

19 

20 RE-EXAMINATION 

21 
BY MR. MITCHELL: 

~ Q Mr. Meek, I believe there may have been filed 

24 

25 

~etitions for removal of Ramiro c~rrtllo and Dan 

Tobin, styled Walter Meek versus Ramiro Carrillo 
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fn thr 229th Judicial District, is that correct? 

2 A Ye~. 

3 Q And you havr s{2ned tho~petftions for removal? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q And both tn 92-74 and Meek versus Dan Tobin, 

6 92-75, you have si~ned those? 

7 A That is correct. 

8 MR. MITCHELL: I "'ould like to intro-

9 duce the petitions and let them s~eak for 

10 themselves. 

11 Q (By Mr. MitchelL:) :he ~rounds set out for 

12 ' removal have nothi.n~ to do, Mr. Meek, with the 

~ matters under Inquiry here today? 

14 A That is correct. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, I ml~ht 

add further that I am doing it as a house 

cleanin~ situation and ~t is not relevant 

at this time, but without having to call hi_m 

back, I thou~ht I woulrl authentfcat~ those 

~leadin~s while he was here. 

THE MASTER: They are certainly authen-

ticated, however, what is the relevancy? 

MR. MITCHELL: The state of his mind 

in testifyin~ and the fact that the plead-

in~s here demonstrate as to this witness 
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no all~~ed misconduct as to Jud~e Carrillo 

in administerin~ the welfare ~rogram. 

THE MASTER: I think ~erhaps I can see 

the admissibility of the oetition with 

respect to Ramiro Carrillo, however, I have 

not r~ad thPm. 

MR. MITCHELL: Dan Tobin is the 

successor county jud~e end would not be 

the county .1udge at this tf.me, so I wi.ll 

withdraw 92-75. 

THE MASTER: All ri~ht, 

(Exhibit R-46 was mark~d for identifies-

tion.) 

MR. MITCHELL: We offer R-46. 

May I also have a request that the 

reporter dupl{cate that and return it to me 

for thP pleadin~s filed. may I have that 

p~rmiss-fon? 

THE MASTER: Yes, you may, I will 

ask you to copy this and give you the copy 

and keep the original that we have marked 

for the procPedin~s here. 

MR. MITCHELL: That is fin~, Your 

Honor. 
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I have no furt~er ouestions, Your 

Honor. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, at this time, 

I would sfmply state the purpose for intro-

duction of the followin~ Exhibits pertains 

to para~raph 7 throu~h 12, excludfn~ para-

graph 11 for general refPrP:tce. As I 

stated, the relevancy of them will be 

placed in context at a later time. 

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, you excluded 

paragraph 11? 

MR. ODAM: I believe that i. s correct. 

THE MASTER: For the record. R-46 is 

admitted. 

(Exhibit R-46 admitted in evidence.) 

MR. ODAM: Mark these, please. 

(The above mentioned document was 

marked Examiner's Exhltt 57 for identifies-

tion.) 

RE - EXAMINATION 
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BY MR. ODAM: 
2 

3 Q Mr. M~ek, I show you what has been marked 

4 Examiner's Exhibit 57 and ask you if you can 

5 identify this ob1~ct? 

6 A The check? 

7 Q y,.~. 

8 A It is to the Benavides Impl~nent and Hardware, 

9 a check for oae thousand ei~ht dollars. 

10 Q Does your si~nature appear on that check? 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q To whom is it made? 

13 A Benavides Implement and Hardware Company. 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR, MITCHELL: Excuse me, Your Honor, 

we are ap~roachin~ a very serious matter. 

May I address a question to him? 

THE MASTER: Address it to the Court. 

MR, MITCHELL: I wonder is Counsel is 

aware of the testimony in federal court 

concernin~ that check. There is testimony 

of for~ery concernin~ that check. 

MR. ODAM: By Mr. Meek? 

MR, MITCHELL: No, by Mr. Coulin~. The 

BPnavides Hardware checks, Your Honor, the 

testimony from Mr. Coulin~ was those checks 
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were for~ed, both as to the endorsements 

atd on the si~natures, e:xcE'pt for Mr. Meek. 

MR. ODAM: The only identification of 

this thus far ls that it is made out to the 

Benavides Implement and Hardware and signed 

by Mr. Meek. 

There is Mr. Couling'~ name on the back 

of it. It sePms that would go to that part 

of thP discussion at a later time. 

It is offered. 

THE MASTEk: If you wish to present that 

same testimony with respect to this instru-

ment, obviously you can, but I don't know 

what the purpose of this inquiry was. 

MR. MITCHELL: I want to be fair with 

the Court and Mr. Odam. 

THE MASTER: He has offered that in 

support of evideneP of those counts. 

Q (By Mr. Odam:) Referring back to the check Mr. 

Meek. for what amount of money is that check made 

out? 

A One thousand ei~ht dollars. 

MR. ODAM: We will offer in evidence 

what has been marked as Exh~bit E-57. 

MR. MITCHELL: Objecti.on, of course, 
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Your Honor, on the ~rounds of hearsay and 

2 relevancy and, further, on the grounds of 

3 the same bein~ endorsed in blank by R. M. 

Coulinv: and beyond the scopP of certainly 

s any specif~c indication. 

6 THE MASTER: The obiection of hearsay 

1 is overruled. 

8 MR. MITCHELL: Ma:y I ask tl,e witness 

9 a voir dire question to determine the ques-

10 tion of authenticity? 

II THE MAST£ .. ; Yes. sfr. 

12 

13 

14 

IS VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION 

16 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 
17 

18 Q Mr. Meek, Exhibit E-57, did you make up this 

19 exhibit from the rPcords? 

20 A No, I didn 1 t. 

21 Q Do you know wherP the original of this check is? 

A Not on the spur of the moment. It could be in 

23 the treasurer's files or the attorney general's 

24 people could have it. 

~ Q If it is where it is supposed to be, it is an item 
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~ 
drawn by th~ county, so it would be in the trea- I 
sur~r's files and a~~ar~ntly endorsed, is that 

correct? 

MR. MITCHELL: We stand on the best 

evidencf' obj~ction as well, Jud~e. 

THE MASTER: Th~ objection is sus-

RE-EXAMINATION 

BY MR, ODAM: 

Q Mr. Meek, you startPd to comment, do you know 

where the ort~inal of this check fs that had 

your name on it? 

A That ~articular check? 

Q Yes. 

A No. I have no idea. The treasurer could have 

it unless you peo~le have it. 

Q And the check WP are referrin~ to herP, who is 

the county treasurer? 

A. Manuel Soliz. 

Q Now, do youknow who took it out of his office? 
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A No. 

2 MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, may I ask 

3 him more more question of E-57? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

s 

6 

7 

8 ~R DIRE EXAMINATION 

9 

BY MR, MITCHELL: 
10 

11 Q You arP quite certain that fs a facimile of your 

12 st~nature? 

13 A YPS. 

14 Q Does any othPr si~nature appearin~ on it appear 

IS to be not authentic? 

~ A No, that is not tbP county clPrk's si~nature on 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

tt. It is one of his clerks that used to be 

authorized to si~n checks in his stead. 

Q Who was that? 

A I don't remember the ~irl's name. She didn't 

know what she was si~nin~. however, I can't make 

it out here, I have no idea. It is one of those 

useless rituals we have to ~o throu~h. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank yo1. 

MR, ODAM: Mark thi.s as Examiner's 
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Exhib'lt 58. 

2 

3 (The above m~ntioned document was 

marked Examin~r·~ Exhibit 58 for identifies-

s tion.) 

6 

7 

8 

9 EXAMINATION 

10 
BY MR. ODAM: 

11 

12 Q I show you what has been mark~d E-58. Can you 

13 identtfy it? 

14 A Yea. that is the jacket that contained the hill for 

~ which that check we just referred to was made out. 

16 Q And does it have a claim number on the jacket? 

17 A Yes, B-911. 

~ Q And does this coincide wfth th~ document I put 

~ in your hand at this time? 

20 A Y~s. it does. 

~ Q And that which you have in your right hand, is 

~ that an original copr? 

~ A Y~s. i.t ts the original check and statement and I 

24 think the original sales slip. 

25 MR, ODAM: I offer in evidence, Your 
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Honor, at thfs tl~e E-58, which s~atn 

THE ~~STER: Well, for purpose of compar 

ison, ~ive Mr. Mitchell the~i~inals so he 

can satisfy himself. 

MR. ODAM: I am sorry. 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, may I inquire 

of Counsel does he intend ~o offer this 

one which is not marked? 

THE MASTER: He tntends t" offer the 

xerox copy of the 1acket. In essence, what 

he 1s doin~ is vfferin~ an orl~lnal and 

movin~ to withdraw it and to substitute a 

copy. Rather than go throu~h that process, 

he is tendering the ori~inal with the request 

to me that he be authorjzed to offer a copy, 

is that correct, Mr. Odam? 

MR. ODAM: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: But, E-58, we don't have 

any objection to E-58, which is a copy of 

B-911, which, of course, (t is irrelevant 

and immaterial, bein~ a Benavides Hardware 

and Imolement Company check. We have an 

objection as to best evidence. There is a 

xerox copy attached to the on? m'de up as 

the orf~tnal and we levy the same objection 
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tO thfs XPTOX C~PCk. 

THE MASTER: HP ~~ not offered any-

thin~ but P-58 . 

MR. MITCHELL: Then the objection is 

• the record reflects, wold be the ones that 

we have had before. 

TqE MASTER: But no b• st evidence, 

since the ori~inal is here. 

MR. MITCHELL: That i~ ri~ht. 

THE MASTER: At this sta~e I don't 

know whether ~. and 58 will be relevant 

or not, but you re~resent you canconnect 

them to ~aragra~h 7 through 12, excluding 

11? 

MR. ODAM: Yes. 

THE MASTER: With that in mind, I will 

admit it. 

(E-58 was admitted into evidence.) 

MR. MITCHELL: Counsel has handed me 

an ori~inal of a jacket, statement and a 

BPnavides Im~lement and Hardware invoice. 

May I have the Court inquire of counsel if 

thPse intend to be kept 1 n t';e ccDurtroom, 

becausP I would like to make an 1nquiry 8R 
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to authenticity of them. I notice he is 

just enterin~ a xerox copy of the jacket. 

I have some inquiry down the 1 ine on that. 

THE MASTER: W~ll, that request is if 

he comes up with the ort~inal of the check 

or with an explanation of why it is mrssing 

so I will admit a cooy, yo~ might make 

inquiry about this traueaction. Will you 

have that here, Mr. Odam? 

MR. ODAM: Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCH~LL: Thank you, Mr. Odam, 

and thank you, Your Honor. 

MR. ODAM: Again, we offer E-58, a 

copy ofthe claim jacket. 

THE MASTE R: It is admitted subject 

to the relevancy. 

(Examiner's Exhibit E·58 admitted in 

evidence.) 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, there are 

numerous claim jackets that I have with 

numerous xerox copies of claim jackets that 

pertain to 7 throu~h 12, including paragraph 

11. What I would suggest is that I not 

offer into evidence at this time theother 
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claim 1ackets becausP of the time it ls 

goin~ to takP simply to or~anl~e this and 

it may not be necessary to ~all Mr. Meek 

at a later time. I feel it is gang to take 

longPr than I anticipated and I prefer to 

let Mr. Meek go and bring him back at a 

later time. 

Perhaps I can get it organized with 

him while we have the next witness and we 

will try it that way. 

THE MASTER: Well, that fs certainly 

agreeable with me. I was ~erhaps going to 

su~gest, and only by suggestion, that you 

and Mr. Mitchell, at break time or after 

one o'clock and after we have moved, simply 

go over those xeroxes of the jackets and 

the jackets themselves and see if you can 

reach an agreement with respect to them. 

Does that sound feasible, Mr. Mitchell? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, and while Mr. 

Meek is here, if he could be given the 

material and assure me they are authentic 

THE MASTER: All right. 

MR. ODAM: Well, I will ~~o out with 

Mr. Meek and hopefully I will not have to 
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rPcall Mr. MPek. 

rHE MASTER: I takE> H you have no 

furthPr questions of Mr. Meek at thts 

MR. ODAM: No, I do not, Your Honor. 

MR. MITCHELL: I do not, Your Honor. 

THE MASTER: Thank you, Mr. Meek. 

Who fs your next witness? 

MS. LEVATINO: Lauro Yzaguirre. 

MRS. LAURO YZAGUIRRE, 

bein~ duly sworn by the Court, duly testified under 

oath as follows: 

BY MS. LEVATINO: 

Q Would you state you mll name for the record? 

A Mrs. Lauro Yzaguirre. 

Q Where do you live? 

A Benavides, Texas. 

Q How lon~ have you lived there? 

A Fifteen or sixteen years. 
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Q Do you work in BPnavid~s? 

A Yes, I work at th~ Cash Store. 

Q What is the Cash Store? 

A It is a ~rocPry store. 

Q Who owns the Cash Store? 

A B~fore my father-in-law, two or three years, my 

husband Abel Yzaguirre. 

Q Y~u stated two or three yearq? 

A Well. about December, 1973, to-- you know, i.t 

was transferred into his name. 

Q WhPn did you start working at the Cash Store? 

A Well, I have always hel~ed th~r~, about fifteen 

or sixteen years off and on. 

Q What did you do at the Cash Store? 

A Well, before, everything from swee~in~, errands, 

just anythin~. 

Q You said before, do you do somethin~ different 

now? 

A Well, after my husband took over, I was ~ut more 

on the books and the collecting of bills and all 

of that. 

Q How do customers at the store ~ay for the ~rocer-

ies they buy at the store? 

MR. MITCHELL: May we a~k counsel to 

fix a time as to when? 
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THE MASTER: Yes, that is a fair request. 

The question was addressed to the current 

Put it tn a time frame. 

Q As a ~eneral rule, durin~ the time that you have 

been at the Cash Store and in the last two years, 

since you have been takin~ care of the books, 

would you tell the Court how your customers pay 

for the groceries. 

A By cash or check. 

Q Cash or check? 

A YE>s. 

Q Do any of your customers char~e ~roceries? 

A Yes, they do. 

Q What method do you use to keep track of thoAe 

charged? 

A By addin~ machine tapes. You see, we use addin~ 

machine tapes and some few we used those old 

type sales books. 

Q Would you ex~lain the procedure for kee~ing track 

of this? 

A You see, customers come in, say sometimes twice 

a day or once a day, and they sign a little tape 

from the machine and sign it and at the morning 

or the afternoon, I take all thosr tapes and put 

it to that there, you know, like Mr. Jones' tapes 
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or Mrs. LopPz, or, you know, individually. 

I keep them with a papPr eli~. 

At thP end of the month, I add Pach individu-

al's tapes and get a total. 

Q Do you send out bills at the end of the month to 

thf'SP ~eople? 

A No, with thesP tapes, no. 

Q How do you ~et your money? 

A Just like at thE' end of the month, you know, they 

come in, or it dPoends on when they ~et ~aid, you 

know. SomE' work for the county and some for 

drillin~ companies and we get oaid mostly at the 

E>nd of beginning of the month. 

Q Does 0. P. Carrillo have a charge account at 

your store? 

A HE> di.d, yes. 

Q How long a time period did he have a charge 

account at your store? 

A He paid his last bill, about, I would say, a 

month ago or two months ago. 

Q How long before that timP had he had a charge 

account at your store? 

A As lon~ as I remembPr. 

Q Who comes in to the Cash Store ard picks up 

grocttriPs for Jt4!;e Carrillo and charges thPm to 
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his account? 

2 A Tomas Elizondo 

3 MR. MITCHELL: We would like to have 

4 a tim<> frame. 

5 THF. MASTER: YP.s, ~lease ~ut in a 

6 time frame. 

7 Q Since January, 1971, who would coi .. Pinto the 

8 Cash Store and ~ick up ~roceri"S for Judge 

9 Carrillo and char~e them to his account? 

10 A Tomas and Robert Elizondo, Patricio Garza and 

11 the iu~ge himself. 

12 Q Have you seen t~ose ~eo~le you named, Tomas and 

13 Roberto Elizondo and Patricio Garza. come in and 

14 ~ick u~ ~roceries? 

IS A YP!'l, 

16 Q How do you know Tomas and Roberto and Patricio, 

17 how do you know they we~pickin~ u~ groceries for 

18 Jud11;e Carrillo? 

19 A I assume they were, they work for him. 

20 Q Did they si~n the addin~ maehinetapes you referred 

21 to? 

2: A Yes. 

23 

24 

Q What name did they ~ut on those ta~es? 

A Their name. SomE'times they thE'msetves would put 

0. P. Carrillo on it, but if they did not, I 
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automatically ~ut tt, because I know th~y were 

2 for 0. P. Carrillo. 

3 Q Who would come in and pay for Jud~e Carrillo's 

4 account at the end of the month? 

5 A Well, I was told he had a three hundred dollar 

6 bud~~t. so I would deduct three hundred dollars 

7 fro m his account and tf I have a difference, he 

8 would either ~ay it or I would carry it as a 

9 credit or vice vPrsa. 

10 Q Okay. 

11 A WE'll. then, I would ~-- t a county check for seven 

12 or eight hundred dollars, or whatever amount 

13 that check would be, and I would credit it to 

14 0. P. Carrillo's account for three hundred dollars 

IS and the rest to Ramiro Carrillo's account. 

16 Q Who told you Jud~e Carrillo had a three hundred 

17 dollar credit allowance? 

18 A Ramiro Carrillo, his brother. 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

MS, LEVATINO: May I approach the 

witness? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

MS, LEVATINO: Mark this, please, 

(The above mentioned document was 

marked Examiner's Exhibit 59 for ldentifica-

tion.) 
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Q (By Ms. Levattno:) 

-------·--. ----'1"-"1'-=1'-'-7-+1-

Mrs. Yza~turr~. I have JUSt 

handed you what has been marked E-59. 

A Yes,ma'am. 

Q Can you tell me if those are ~hotostattc co~ies 

of addin~ machine taoes you ~ave m~ last month? 

A Y~R. 

Q Do you know where the ori~inals nf those cooies 

are at the ~resent time? 

A You have them, the ori~lnals? 

Q YPR, ma'am. 

A You have them. 

Q Do you recall the ort~inals being introduced 

into the Senate Im~eachment Hearin~? 

14 A YPS. 

15 Q Would you look at that Exhibit, plaae. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

Now, in the original E'Xhibit, whi.ch you 

are familiar with, with each one of the tt~ms 

which are labeled H-3-(1), were each of those 

se~arate pieces of paper in the Exhibit? 

A Well, I jwt have H-1- (1) throu~h (29). 

Q Look on the next line. 

A Yes, I see it. 

Q Were each of those separate oieces of oaper? 

A Yes. 

Q Were each of those addin~ machine taoes? 
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A YeP.. 

2 Q Did these represent the method of bookkeepin~ 

3 for charge accounts? 

4 A They do. 

5 Q I see there are two nam~s on most of these 

6 tapes. How does it happen there are two names 

7 on them? 

B A Well, like, for example, one is 0. P. Carrillo 

9 at the to~ and Patricio Garza is on the bottom. 

10 That means the name at the top was put by me or 

11 my father-in-law. 

12 Q On H-1-(1), that has a lon~ series of numbers? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q And what does that particular adding machine 

15 tape -perutin to? 

16 A That is the total for all of this. 

~ Q Would that be the slip re-present4n~ the total --

n A At the end of the month. 

~ Q Pardon me. Let me finish my quest'on. 

20 Of all the other sli~s in this Exhibit? 

21 A Yes , ma ' am. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MS. LEVATINO: Okay. At this time, 

I would offer in evidence Exhibit E-59. 

MR. MITCHELL: Best evidence rule 

objection, Your Honor, no oro~er ~redicate 
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_____ tlU 

and irrelevant and immaterial: no persoMl 

knowled~e on the part of the witness. 

MS. LEVATINO: With re~ard to the best 

evidE>ncr rulr, the wf.tness has testified 

these were introduced into the Senate impeach 

ment procerdin~s and remain there. No~. for 

the proper predicate, the~ tapes are being 

introduced to show the method by which 

charge accounts have been kept in her store 

and for no other reason. 

THE MASTJ<..h.: I overrule the objection 

lind admit E- 59. 

(Exhibit E-59 admitted into evidence.) 

Q Are you familiar with the method by which Duval 

County pays the CAsh Store for welfare ~iven 

welfare receptents? 

A I do. 

Q Would you explain that process? 

A Well, some peopl~ would come to my store and 

they would either br{ng slips, you know, say, for 

thirty dollars worth, and sometimes they would 

call by phone and say give thi.s person so much and 

I would ~ive the amount I was tot~ to give to the 

recepient. 
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Q Who would t~lPphon~ you to t~ll you to ~~v~ 

rPciolents groc~ri~s? 

MR. MITCHELL: That would be hearsay. 

The methodology being previously established 

and the question is leading. 

THE MASTER: Well, the question is not 

leading, but shows the basLs of her knowl-

edge. 

-------·---------------------· 
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MR. MITCHELL: May I ask again on the 

2 time frame, Judge, please, that the question 

3 be fixed within a time frame? 

4 THE MASTER: I understand that this was 

5 all of these were from the time -- from you 

6 said January, 1971, did you not? 

7 MS. LEVATINO: Yes, sl~. 

8 THE MASTER: From and after January, 

9 1971, and unless stated differently, ~ounsel, 

10 I would assume that is the entire time frame 

11 that you are r ferring to, counsel. 

12 MR. MITCHELL: Thank you. 

13 Q (By Ms. Levatino:) Mn;. Yzaguirre, yo11 just 

14 testified that someone would call by telephone to 

15 a11thor1ze-you or the Cash Store to give a we~re --

16 or give groceries to certain individ11als? 

17 A Yes, ma •am. 

" Q Did yo11 personally talk on the telephone to 

19 whoever 

20 A I did, once or twl.ce, yes. 

~ Q Who was the person that called? 

ft A At one time it was Mr. Cleofus Gonzalez. 

~ Q Was it anyone else? 

24 A Well, sometime the commissioner 1 s ·~ife would 

2S 

II 

telephone me and tell me this lady is going, just 
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give her this amount, and I would get it. 

Q Who -- by the commissioner's wife, whom do you mean 

A Mrs. Ramiro Carrillo. 

Q Okay. Y u said that you would then -- someone 

would come in -- would come in with a slip. I 

would like for you to look at 

MS. LEVATINO: May I ~'.pproach the 

witness, Your Honor? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

Q I would like for you to look at Examiner•s 

Exhibit E-55 and tl.l.. to page 407, please, 

Mm. Yzaguirre, that is a magnifying glass on the 

chair next to you if you would like to use that. 

A I think I -- well, I guess I had better. 

Q Where are three items or three types of items 

on that page: one being Duval County welfare form. 

A Yes. 

Q And one is a -- a store invoice and then a series 

of forms written in hand wlh various names and 

amounts on them. 

A Yes. 

Q When you said that you would -- sometimes people 

would bring slips to the store for groceries; 

would you tell the Court which, if any, of the 

slips you are referring to? 
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A To the one signed by o. P. Carrillo. 

2 Q The small slips written in hand? 

3 A Yes, ma •am. 

4 Q would persons ever bring a form similar to the 

5 one stated or printed as the Duval County 

6 Welfare Department? 

7 A sometimes, and sometimes, rarely. but sometimes. 

8 ~ These are the two types of slips? 

9 A Yes. 

w ~ You were referring to? 

11 A And they called, lL. ... I told you. 

12 Q After you received the slips and gave the persons 

13 the groceries, then what would you do to get your 

14 money from the county? 

~ A I would automatically put that under Ramiro 

16 CarrillO's personal bill, you know. 

~ Q Well, what 

n A Because I didn't -- I didn't have it under 

19 Commissioner Carrillo or Judge Carrillo's account, 

20 Ijust had it under o. P. Carrillo's account and 

21 Ramiro Carrillo's account. I never used the word 

22 commissioner on the top or judge. 

~ ~ Okay. Now, looking back at that page 

24 

2S 

MS. LEVATINO: That I just lost. 

THE MASTER: Page 407. 
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MS. LEVATINO: Page 407. 

2 Q someone came in, if you will look at the slip, 

3 this is Examiner's Exhibit 55 on page 407, it 

1 24 

4 says, "Give Rosa Garza twenty dollars." If someone 

5 came in and gave that to you, that slip 

6 A I see it. 

7 C' Do you see 1 t? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q You just said you would put it under someone •s 

10 account. Whose account would you put that under? 

II A Well, you see, that ,;as brought -- when this 

12 paper was brought, you know --

13 Q Well, I am not saying this specific one. 

14 A Oh, yes. 

IS Q I am just saying if you received one like that, 

16 that had this particular designation on it, 

D whose account would you put it under? 

18 MR. MITCHELL: That is what the witness 

19 is· trying to say, counsel. Your Honor, the 

20 Duval County department, official form 

21 would be brought with the designation 

~ A I would keep those things over here. 

23 

24 

2S 

MR. MITCHELL: I understand that to be 

her answer, Judge. 

THE MASTER: Don•t interrupt, Mr. 
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Mitchell, unless you have an objection. I 

2 guess you•re really tr1ing to be helpful 

3 there. 

4 MR. MITCHELL: She was pointing to 

5 it, Judge. 

6 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

7 MR. MITCHELL: Counsel was reading and 

8 I withdraw the observation. 

9 Q (By Ms. Levatino:) To clarify the record, Mrs. 

10 Yzaguirre, did you just testify that the state --

11 the form saying, "c~·e Rosa Garza twenty dollars," 

12 written in hand, not on the printed Duval County 

13 department, but the form just below that? 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q These are the type of slips that people would come 

16 in and give to you for groceries? 

17 ---A I don•t think you•re getting my point. These were 

18 the slips brought when, you know, for the Judge, 

19 this particular time just to put here. 

~ Q T~en, is it your testimony that a form similar 

21 to the one printed Duva1County Welfare Department, 

22 is the form that you would receive? 

~ A Yes, a form like this and sometimes like this, or 

24 

25 

just any kind of paper, you know, givethis to 

this, and I would give it to them. 
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Q Well, would you ever receive a form similar to the 

2 one below that? 

3 A Yes, sometimes, yes. 

4 Q Okay. 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q H~w did you --

1 MS. LEVATINO: Pardon r:!, Strike that. 

8 Q You have testified you would ·~ake that form and 

9 put it in someone•s account. How did you know 

10 whose account to put it in to attach it to? 

11 A Well, for example, t~ this individual brought a 

12 slip signed by o. P. Carrillo, it was at his 

13 account. If it was, you know, ~metimes like this, 

14 you know, just a name signed by Ramiro Carrillo, 

15 I put it in Ramiro CarrillO's account. The. t is 

16 the way it worked. 

17 Q All right. 

18 A That is the way I did it • 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE MASTER: We need to take a break. 

We will be in recess for about 15 minutes. 

(Whereupo~ the hearing was in recess 

from 11:45 a.m. until 12 o'clock noon.) 

THE MASTER: You may pr~ceed. Ms. 

Levatino. 

- ·---r--
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Q Mrs. Yzaguirre, you have testified that 

2 MS. LEVATINO: Strike that. 

3 Q How do you -- what do you do, then, after people 

4 have brought in thete slips, to B!t your money from 

5 the county for these groceries? 

6 A Well, like I said, I would just put them under --

7 now if this little paper was brov~ht by, i~laled 

8 o. P., it would be put in hiJ, account and the 

9 others, I would put them in Ramiro Carrillo's 

10 account. 

11 Q Okay. Then, how WOL.. 1 you get paid for those? 

12 A At the end of the month, the commissioner would 

13 bring me a check for seven or eight hundred 

14 dollars and I would apply three numdred dollars on 

IS o. P. Carrillo's account and the rest to Ram!ro 

16 Carrillo's account. 

17 Q How would the commissioner know how much money to 

18 bring you or how much the check should be? 

19 MR. MITCHELL: That would be hearsay, 

20 Your Honor, as to this witness. 

21 MS. LEVATINO: Let me rephrase the 

22 question. 

~ Q Did you have to fill out any forms for the 

24 

25 

commissioner or the commissioners court before you 

would get a check from that court? 
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A Yes, ma•am, 

2 Q All right. would you 

3 A They would bring me one like on page 407, Duval 

4 County Welrara Department or whatever it says. 

s Q Excuse me, Mrs. Yzaguirre, that is Examiner's 

6 Exhibit 55 on page --

7 A Right, 55 on page 407. . ; 

e Q All right. 

1 A The one that says Duval County Welrare Department 

10 with names, . ~.. ' , . 

11 Q All right. 

12 A And the amounts, the commissioner would bring me 

13 that an~ rrom that I would copy that -- on the 

14 lef't, those names, and get.aay the total of' seven 

IS or eight hundred dollars or whatever the amount. 

11 That is the way -- but I would --- would bring me 

· 17 the names and I would copy 1 t to this little 

R sales slip or whatever it is. 

11 Q All right. 

A And he would bring up this with the -- white the 

11 white blanks and with this from the store, I 

B thiO, you know, the Cash Store, and he would take 

IS them to -- I guess to the -- I don • t know, to the 

K commissioners court, I guess, 

• Q Okay. Now, you said the commissioner would bring 
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you what the Duval County welfare --

2 A Yes, ma'am, the white thing, you know. 

3 Q All right. 

4 A With the names and the amoun 111. 

s ~ By the commissioner, who are you referring to? 

6 A Ramiro Carrillo. 

7 Q So, Ramiro Carrillo brought you ~hat form? 

8 A Yes, ma'am. 

9 Q Okay. And then you would take the names and amoun 

10 on that form and write them on the slip of the 

11 paper immediately ~~ the left on page 407? 

12 A Yes, ma'am, on the left of this one. 

~ Q Okay. I believe next to you, there will be a 

14 package of exhibits, one designated Examiner's 

15 Exhibit 56. 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q Do you have that? 

18 A Yes, ma'am. 

19 Q If you would turn to page 442, please. On the top 

20 of that page, there is a photo~tatic copy of the 

21 check. would you tell the Oourt who the check 

is made out to, for how much and what the claim 

23 number is? 

24 A The check is made out to the Cash '3tore, Benavides 

25 Texas, for the amount of $710 and the claim number-
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you mean on the check? 

2 Q Yes, read the next -- it is on the next line. 

3 A I don•t even see a claim number. 

4 MS. LEVATINO: May I approach the 

s witness? 

6 THE MASTER: Yes. I really don't know 

7 why you•re having to do that. I can read tt 

8 as well as she can. 

9 MS. LEVATINO: All right. 

10 THE MASTER: And it 1.s iu evidence. 

11 Q Now, just below th~l- is a photostatic copy of 

12 the other s~ of that check? 

13 A Yes, ma'am. 

14 Q Who endorsed that check.? 

15 A I did. 

16 Q Okay. Now, I would refer you to Examiner's 

17 Exhibit 55, that is the othe~ book at page 423. 

18 A Okay. 

~ Q On the r1.ght-hand side of that page there is a 

20 jacket with the claim number A-353 for the amount 

21 of $710. 

22 A Yes, ma •am. 

~ Q D~ you see that? 

24 A Yes. 

~ Q Could you tell me what the relationship between 

-----tt--------------------------------- --·r--
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that claim jacket and the check which you 

2 identified was? 

] 331 1. 

just T 

3 A Well, it was for that -- the check that I just saw 

4 is for the amount of that jacket or whatever you 

5 call it. 

s Q Okay. I would like to dirac t your attention to 

7 the -- what has been referred to penerally as the 

8 sales slip from the Cash Stor~ that appears in the 

9 middle of that page and is dated 1-22-74. 

10 A Yes, ma •am. 

11 Q Can you tell me whc::" handwr1 ting that 1s? 

12 A Mine. 

13 Q Okay. On line -- next to the number 7 on that slip 

14 is the name Patricio Garza. Do you know Patricio 

15 Garza? 

16 A Yes, I do • 

17 Q Can you tell the Court whether or not he gets 

18 groceries at the Cash Store? 

~ A He does. He has an account with us. 

~ Q Can you tell the Court how he pays for his 

21 grocerie s'l 

~ A He pays it with the check he gets from working. 

~ Q Does he come into your store and pay you for his 

24 groceries? 

~ A His wlfe does. 
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Q His wife? 

2 A Usually his wife. 

3 Q Can you tell me what that slip, which is the one 

4 dated 1-22-74, represents or why you wrote out 

5 that slip? 

6 A I wrote it because I copied it from a Duval 

7 county welfare, ym k.now, the one n top. I 

8 copied the names from the one on top, you know, 

9 Eva Garza, you know. 

10 Q So this slip was made out again to get reimbursemen ? 

II A Yes, ma'am. 

12 Q From the county for groceries? 

13 A Yes, ma•am. 

14 Q Well, if Patricio Garza is paying for his own 

IS groceries at the end of the month, why did you put is 

16 name on this slip? 

17 A Because it came in this original -- that was brough 

18 to me by the commissioner. 

~ ~ Okay. But you stated that he always paid for his 

20 own groceries? 

~ A Yes, ma'am. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, Your Honor. 

Now, the objection will be herumay. We have 

tied in Eva Garza and Patricio Garza. Now 

the ultimate fact issue with something wrong 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7840t 



I 
---++-------------------~--------- -- ~~s--~r---

with Patricio, we move to strike on the 

2 grounds of hearsay. 

3 THE MASTER: Overruled. 

4 Q Did Patricio Garza, on 1-22-74, receive groceries 

5 from your store that he did not pay for and were 

6 paid for by county funds? 

7 A No, he d i d n o t • 

8 MR. MITCHELL: We.l.l, Your Honor --

9 Q Okay. Would you look at the other seven names 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

on that particular slip. Can you tell the Court 

of your own knowled!!,-. if any of th:! se people whose 

names appear on that slip received groceries from 

your store that they did not pay for but were 

paid for by the County? 

15 A You•re talking about H-(31)? 

16 Q The same slip, ma •am. 

17 A We 11, the only one to my knowledge was Eva Garza. 

" Q Okay. Do you know Beatrice Hinojosa? 

" A Probably if I see her, I would know her. 

~ Q If she walked into your store, would you recognize 

21 her? 

U A I don't think so, unless they say this is 

23 Beatrice, maybe I have seen the lady before, and 

I would know it was her, I mean 

~ Q But to your knowledge, she never received 
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A To my knowledge, no, no. 

2 Q. If she received groceries, you, as bookkeeper of 

3 the store -- would you as bookkeeper of the store 

4 receive any kind of paper or indication that she 

5 received the groceries? 

6 A Yes, ma•am. She would come, like I say, with the 

7 little paper, with the name or llke I said, by 

8 telephone, telling me to givA this lady this or 

9 that. 

10 Q. Okay. ~e total on that particular invoice is 

11 $255. If you didn'' apply it to any groceries 

12 received by Patricio Garza, for example, what did 

13 you do with the check, $255 of the $710 check that 

14 you received from the county? 

~ A Well, it didn't come as a $255 check. 

16 Q. I understand. 

17 A It came together, all together, in one separate 

18 check for like, for example, these $710, you have 

19 to add two or three or these slips to make that 

20 amount. 

~ Q. I understand. 

22 A You see. 

~ Q. All right. But of the --

24 A When I got this check for $710, I would deduct 

25 $300 and apply to o. P. Carrillo's account and 
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the rest to the commisstoner•s account. 

2 Q Why would you apply $300 to o. P. Carrillo? 

3 A I was told to do so, I did it. 

4 Q Who told you to do that? 

5 A His brother, the commissioner. 

6 Q Okay. would you look back at Exhibit E-56. 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q Would you look at the remainlng checks outside 

9 of thB one we just talked about on there and te 11 

10 the Court how you applied the proceeds of those 

11 checksl 

12 A In the same manner. 

13 Q All of those checks? 

u A Well, I deducted $300 and I applied the rest to 

15 the Commissioner. 

16 Q A 11 right. 

17 A That's all I can --

18 Q Okay. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

24 

25 

. MS .. LEVATINO: Row, for counsel•s 

benefit, I am going to go through some 

names, whose -- who appear on the exhibit 

marked E-56 -- pardon me, E-55, which I 

believe counsel has. 

If he would like, I can refer to, 

as I read off the names, refer to each one 
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of the subparagraphs within Exhibit E-55 

or whatever the pleasure or counsel or the 

Court is. 

THE MASTER: Well, counsel, the request 

is directed primarily at you or to you. Do 

you want to know -- I think the record 

should reflect the portion of the exhibit 

from which you are readtng names, yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yea, and also, Your 

Honor, if I could, w~ purpose is abe -- if 

she knows persunally or they were standing 

there before, her personal knowledge, I mean 

really, I would like her to ask the question 

in full so I would know the purpose of her 

question. 

THE MASTER: Well, she can ~onduct the 

examinattn the way she sees fit. 

MR. MITCHELL: I agree, Judge. 

Q (By Ms. Levatino:) Mrs. Yzaguirre, do you know who 

Jose Sandajar --

THE MASTER: All right. Where are you 

reading .from? 

MS. LEVATINO: I will do this right now. 

Q In Exhibit Number 56, Subdivision H-1-(6} page 

368. 
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MR. MITCHELL: Page what? 

MS. LEVATINO: Page 368. 

3 A Exhibit what? 

4 Q E-55. 

5 A Okay. Page what? 

6 Q Page 368. 

7 A Well, my pages aren't -- 368, :~es. 

8 Q It is on 

9 A All right. 

10 Q On the slip dated 6-15-71, which is the bottom sll.p 

11 on that page • 

12 A Okay. 

13 Q The name Jose Sanda jar appears. 

14 A Of course, that is my father-in-law's writing. 

15 MR. MITCHELL: Right. 

1& Q But the name does appear there? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q Okay. On page 370, on the slip dated 2-11-71, the 

19 name, do you see the name Jo•e Sandajar on the 

20 third line? 

21 A Yes, ma •am. 

~ ~ On page 371, the slip dated 12-3-69, do you see 

23 the name Jose Sandajar? 

24 A Now, that is ncy --

~ Q Do you see the name? 
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A Yes, the name, I see tt. 

Q On page 373, on the slip dated 3-18-717 

A Yes, ma 1am, I see tt. 

Q Do you see the name Jose Sandajar? 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q On page 376 on the slip dated 4-13-71 do you see 

the name Jose Sandajar? 

A 4-17-711 

Q 4-13-71. 

A Oh, yes. 

~ In the upper right-h-,d corner. 

A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Okay. On page 379 on the slip dated 5-10-71 on 

the Cash Store slip, do you see the name Jose 

Sandajar? 

A Page 3797 

Q Yes, in the Cash Store slip at the bottom there? 

A Yes, I see it now, yes. 

Q All right. 384, page 384, the slip dated 8-3-71, 

do you see the name Jose Sandajar? 

A Yes. 

All right. On page 399? 

A Yes. 

Q The slip dated 5-4-72? 

A Yes, ma'am. 
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Q All of these places where Jose Sandajar 1 s name has 

2 appeared that we have just ident1.fied, for what 

3 reason would that name have been put on those 

4 slips? 

5 MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, Your Honor, 

6 we are go1.ng to object it would be hearsay 

7 as the witness tried to ann1er the sales 

8 slips are not 1.n her hnndwriting, they are 

9 in Abel Yzaguirre's handwr1.ting. She would 

10 have no personal knowledge. Consequently, 

11 her answer wol-d be speculat1.on, guess and 

12 hearsay. 

13 THE MASTER: I will o~errule the 

14 object ion. 

15 Q Please answer the question. 

16 A Will you please ask 

17 ~ Okay. On the slips why would Jose Sandajar•s 

18 name appear on those slips? 

19 A Well, the only reason, to my knowledge, because he 

20 was in the welfare thing, I mean cop1.ed down there. 

21 Q To your knowledge, has Jose Sandajar ever received 

22 

23 

24 

25 

groceries from your store? 

MR. MITCHELL: And that, of course, 

would be hearsay, Your Honor. We object 

to it, too. 
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THE MASTER: You and I slmplJ do not 

agree on what Ls hearsay, and what lsn•t. 

The objection is overruled. 

Q To your knowl~e --

A Okay. To my knowledge, I have never given Jose 

Sandajar food that was paid by the county, to my 

knowledge. 
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Q Do you know Mf.ke Ruiz? 

2 A A~?;ain, I would say I don't think I know him unless 

3 he was brought to my attention. 

4 Q To your knowledge. have youNer given a persn 

5 named Mike Ruiz ~roceries? 

6 A I have never, to my knowl~e. 

1 Q Do you know Tomas Elizondo? 

8 A Yes. I do. 

9 Q Would you turn to Exhibit E-55. ps~e 420. please? 

10 A Yes. 

II Q The claim dated 2-2)-74? 

12 A Yes, ma'am. 

13 Q Does his name ap~ear on that claim? 

14 A Yes, ma'am. 

15 Q Would you turn to page 425? 

16 A Yf>S. 

17 Q The claim dated 3-6-74? 

18 A 'Its. 

19 Q DoE's his name appear on that claim? 

20 A It does. 

21 Q Is that your handwriting on the Cash Store slip? 

22 A Yes, ma'am. 

Q Okay. Does Tomas Elizondo gf>t groceries at 

24 your store? 

~ A Well, yes, he doesn't trade like thE' others. HE' 
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22 

would be by, maybe two or three bills, and that 

it about all. 

Q To your knowledg~, has Tomas Elizondo received 

groceri~s from your store that were oaid for by 

tl,e county? 

A Well, he took groceries but not for Tomas Elizondo. 

He took groceries for the Jud~e an~ it was paid 

by tl,e Jud~e, but Tomas Elizondo never took ~ro-

ceries for hfm paid by the county. 

Q Is it your testimony that to your knowledge you 

have never ~iven Toma~ Elizondo for his personi 

use that were paid for by the county? 

A NC"t, ma'am. 

Q Do you know Rosa Garza? 

A Yes. 

Q Does Rosa Garza get ~roceries at your store? 

A YeA. 

Q How does Rosa Garza pay for her ~roceries? 

A By check where he works. 

Q To your knowled~e. has Rosa Garza received ~ro­

ceries from your store which she did not pay for. 

but were pay for by county check? 

A She never took ~roceries paid by the county. 

Q Do you know Consuelo Hinojosa? 

A Yes, ma'am. 
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To your knowled~e. has Consuelo Hinojosa ever 

2 recefved ~roceries from the Cash Sto~paid for 

3 by the county? 

4 A To my knowledge, nn. 

5 MS. LEVATINO: Pass the witness. 

6 

7 

8 

9 E X A M I N A T I 0 N 

10 

BY MR. MITCl'IELL: 
11 

12 Q Mrs. Yza~uirre, how are you today? 

~ A Okay, sir. 

14 Q I believe I have examined you on two occasions 

15 about this same matter? 

~ A Yes. sir. 

17 Q I believe once was as recently as October, up 

18 in Austin, and once earlier back in May of this 

19 yet~r? 

~ A WPll, you know the dates. I have them there. 

21 Q And at that time, I believe -- let's go back to 

22 

23 

24 

25 

May to begin with. 

You understand I am ~oing to ask you ques-

tions that perhaps I have asked you at other pro-

CE'edtngs? 
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A Y~s. I understand. 

Q And I asked you, for example, back in October, 

wh~th~r or not, when I asked you back in May, 

if there were any ta~es, and you told me there 

were no tapes of any character that you could 

dt>liver back tn May for our e~aminatton, do you 

recall that? 

A I do. 

Q And when I askedyou t~t in Octobt>r, I believe 

you delivert>d those ta~es marked E-59 and intro-

duced here in evidence, is that correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And tht> ex~lanation was that you didn't have them 

in May and in October, you explained that some of 

the youn~sters had found them? 

A That is truE>. 

Q But tht> way you handle your bookkeepin~ is that 

the tapes and all of the char~e slips were delivert> 

to the customer and there was no record kept by 

you, other than the one you delivered? 

A I threw half of them away myself. 

Q And the only record we have here. and that is the 

ones between May and Au~ust, was it, this here? 

A Yes. 

Q And I also asked you at thnt time -- on direct 
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21 

Pxaminatton you hav~ bePn asked several 

and r~eatedly I have asked for a ttme ftx and it 

wAs from June, 71, to sometime in 1973, is that 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, let me ask you in connection, first of all, 

wf th some of the ExJ,.ibits introd1· :Pd. L~>t 's look 

at 56 first. 

A 56? 

Q Yes. 

A Okay. 

Q Do you have it? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, the endorsements on thoeP checks -- well, 

let's start on ~age 440. The first check, which 

is H-2-(1), and that is signed by Abel YzaJ¢.rre? 

A Y«>s. 

Q Who is Abel Yza~utrre? 

A He still is, he is my father-in-law. 

Q And Lauro Yza~uirre. that is your husband? 

A Correct. 

Q And the date of that check, that is January, 

1973, he ap~arently was endorsing the checks 

paid to the Cash Store? 

A Yes. 
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Q I will ask you to look at H-2-(2) and ask you 

is that Abel Yza~uirre 1 s si~nature and is that 

the endorsement of the CAsh Store? 

A Yes. 

Q There is no reason to suspect that the money 

didn't ~o into the Cash Store account under these 

two checks. 

A That is correct. 

Q Look at the top of 441, betn~ H-2-(3), and that 

is a check dated April 23, 1974. Who endorsed 

that? 

A I did. 

Q And that was put in your bank account? 

A To the Cash Store, 'Y"' s. 

Q I will ask you to look please at the cheek on 

the bottom of pa~e 441, bein~ a Cash Store account, 

and ask you who endorsed that? 

A I did. 

Q And that check ts also in January, 74, is tt not? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q All ri~ht. Now, the first two that I asked you 

ahout were dated in 1973 in January. These were 

endorsed by your father•tn-law, ri~ht? 

A Yt>s. 

Q When did you start endorslne; them, in 1974? 
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A Somethtng ltke that. 

Q Prior to that time, Mrs. Yzaguirre, would it be 

falr to say that your father-in-law handled the 

de~osits or your husband? 

A My father-in-law. 

Q I also notice -- well, certainly Exhibit 56 is 

not all the checks you got from the county of 

Duval. Would it be fair to soy thai all of the 

chaks up to February, 1974, were endorsed by your 

daddy-in-law and your husband? 

A After 74? 

Q Prior to. 

A My fathPr-in-law. 

Q Then I want to direct your attention to those 

Exhibits under E-55. Would you turn to those for 

me. olease. 

Let's start with page 351. 

Now, there we have sales slips at the 

bottom of 351 being H-1-(1) dated in 1970, do 

you see that? 

A Yes. 

Q And that is Abel Yzaguirre's si~nature? 

A Yes. 

Q I~ that the same Abel Yza~uirre you testified 

endorsed the checks in E-56 7 
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Q So on June 22nd, 1970. Abel Yza~uirre si~ned 

indicating he had delivered to Rafael -- whatever 

that name is, th~ p~ople listed on that sales 

slip, that he had made deliveries? 

6 A Yes, in fact. that is my handwritin~. I copies 

7 

8 
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10 

11 

12 
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25 

it from that last page. 

Q It is signed by Abel, is it n~t? 

A I put it Abel, because the store belonged to him 

then. 

Q You left in 1970 and b~came operated on? 

A Yes. 

Q In Au~ust, 1970? 

A Yes. 

Q In Au~ust, l970, you wre not in the store? 

A Icouldnotbe. 

Q W~ll, I am not tryin~ to embarrass you. 

A No, you didn't. 

Q You testified that people came and went and you 

were not in the store from Au~ust, 1970, until 

1972, is that correct? 

A Something like that. 

Q I believe I asked you previously and you testified 

when I asked you if you wre absent fcom the store 

for two years, you said 70 t~ 71, and I asked you 
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could it have been that it was sometime in 72. 

A I told you I could not umember. 

Q All ri~ht. It is quite fixed in your memory 

that you left the store and were operated on here 

in Cory, us? 

A YeA. 

Q In Au~ust, 1970. that would be September, October, 

Nnvember and December of 1970. plus all of 1971? 

A Yes. 

Q And now, can you tell us, please. when you went 

back into the store. your present best recollection 

A WPll, like I said, probably at the end of that 

year or the middle, I would not know. 

Q So that you would not know, of course --

A !would come in and go out, but I don't know 

exactly the dates. 

Q As I say, you were not present from Au~U£, 1970, 

until sometime in 1972, but, of course, you did 

not attend to the daily business of the store 

during that time? 

A No I didn't. 

Q So you would not know, of course, the sales made 

by the folks there at that time? 

A No. 

Q And I have asked you this ~revious1y, but who in 
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the family worked tn the store besides you 

January, 1970, until you went back in 1972? I 

bPlieve Abel did? 

A Yes, and my husband, Lauro. 

Q And those youn~sters also helped at times? 

Q Can you ~ive us the name of the youn~sters that 

worked In the store from Au~vst, 1970 , until 1972? 

A Well, at that tlmP my daughter was not married, 

so her name is Beatrice Elena and she ts married 

now. 

Q That iA the lady you told us about earlier? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. 

A And Milda Anna Yzaguirre. 

Q Do you know any other person, other than the 

ones you have named, and I am talktn~ about the 

period from January, 1971, to 73, that worked 

f.n the store? 

A Not that I recall. 

Q Could you tell the Co~. please, how many times 

you were there, if any, from January, 1971, to 

1972, when you came back. or I assume you came 

back in 1972. 

A I hope so. 
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Q Can you tell us how many days you were there? 

A I cannot tell you, because I wentu~ there even 

tf I wa~ sick and helped as I could. 

Q And then left? 

A Yf's. to rest. 

Q Would you say tha~ would be infrequently? 

A Durtn~ my sickness, of course. 

Q Could you tell us when you went back on sort of 

a permanent basi~ in 1972? 

A Probably, like I told you, maybe the mlddle of 

1972. 

Q Would it be fair to say June, 1972? 

A Well, ~ut June, I don't know. 

Q You started back on a re~ular basis? 

A Yes, because I was feelin~ much better. 

Q I notice the checks and documents introduced in 

evidence relate to 1974. You have si~ned those 

and you don't st~n any of them in 1970 or 71? 

A No, just when my husband took over. 

Q If you were, of course, not there, as you have 

testified you were not, you would not know who I 

the peo~le in the store would make sales to, becaus1 

you were not there? 

A Probably, yes. 

Q And you would not know to ~hom ~roceries were 
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drlivP-red and to whom they were not? 

A That is ri~ht, how could I. 

Q And you could not know who char~ed and who didn't 

char~~ for the ~roceries? 

A If I was not there, I would not know. 

Q And you would not know who made out the sales 

slios or who did not for that p~rtod of time, is 

that correct? 

A Well, th~ people tn the store, Abel or Lauro. 

Q You personally would not? 

A No. 

Q And you would not know personally what documents-

tf.ons wP.re made to thP county or to anybody? 

A Of course, if I was not there, how could I know. 

Q And you would not know whether Jud~e Carr! llo was 

in there durin~ that period of time? 

A Yes, I would. 

Q Durin~ that period of time, you were not there, 

you meaN? 

Q Yes, I could see from my house as to who came and 

who didn't. I was resting, but I would see peoplP-

comin~ and gotn~. I am not close to the stae 

but I havE' «>yes. 

Q Wf!'re you close enou~h to see Jud~e l;arri llo sign 

those tickets? 
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A No, sir, I could not. 

2 Q W~r~ you close ~nou~h to him to see him sign those 

3. ticketB, because you t~stifi~d under oath you 

4 saw him sign those tlck~ts? 

s A The tickets I have said I saw him sign, yes. 

6 Q You saw him si~n th~ tickets in evidenre in 

7 Exhibit 59 on Au~ust 19, 1972? 

a A Yes, l)robably by that time I •.Jas there. 

9 Q I am 1ust askin~. 

w A I am 1ust telling you, too. 

11 Q Did you see him si~n 1ny of those? 

~ A I probably did, because it is in 1972. 

13 Q All ri~ht. Did you see him sign anything during 

14 the priod of time you~re out, let's get it that 

15 way. 

16 A How could I sPe if I was out. 

17 Q You havP testifiPd ~reviously, I believe, if I made 

11 notations correctly here, quite clearly as to whom 

19 groceries w~redelivered to and checks paid to the 

Cash StorP and documentation of the billing to 

21 the county all of that time and obviously that is 

not correct, because you were not therP. 

a A I could not tPll you when I was th~re or not there, 

M but I am tellin~ the truth of what they have asked 

IS me. 
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------------------------~1354+-Q And it would also be thf' truth that you don't 

2 know durin' that period of time whether Mike Ruiz 

3 was in the store? 

4 A I don't know hfm. 

s Q And you were not therP? 

6 A That i~ right. 

7 Q And thP documentation shows the ~1oceries were 

8 deliverf'd by Abel to him? 

9 A I don't know him. 

10 Q Or to Tomas 'Elizondo? 

11 A Well, I do know him. 

~ Q But I am talktn~ about the period of time from 

13 January, 1971, to mid-1972, durin~ that period 

14 of tlmf'. 

15 A You will have to ask my father-in-law. 

16 Q Or Rosa Garza, you don't know about her, because 

17 you were not there. is that correct? 

18 A I wish I knew exactly thf' date I went back, but 

19 we will say June, 1972, if that is what you say. 

~ Q If you have your recollection, there is no doubt 

21 

23 

25; 

it wa~ August. 1970, that you had your operation? 

Q And how long wf'rf' you in the hospital? 

A A month. 

Q Where did you conv~le~ce? 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

18 

17 

18 

19 

ao 

21 

25 

In Benavides at my home. 

(I And i.s June sti 

11 

your best present recollection 

when you went back to the store? If you want to 

chan!?:e i.t --

A No, I don't want to chan~e nothi.n~. 

to think about lt. 

·~· It i.s a fair rtatement then to say that tt was 

about June? 

b It is a fair statement. 

Q In Au~ust, 1970, unttl you went back to work, 

whether Roberto was in the store or not, yot1 

would not know? 

\ I was not there. 

Q Or Patricio Garza or Consuelo Hinojosa, am I 

correct? 
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1356 I 

Or this person that you have been asked about by 

the name of Sandajar? 

3 A Jose Sandajar. 

4 Q You wouldn •t know he was in there, would you not, 

5 from January of '71 until mid-'72, am I correct? 

6 A You're sure trying to get those dates because you 

7 know I was sick then. 

e Q Well, Mrs. Yzaguirre, that i~ correct because you 

9 have testified to a lot of facts, to personal 

10 knowledge which we now know is not true and I am 

11 trying to be very ki.j about it. 

~ A I'm trying to be kind, too, sir. 

13 Q You did not know the sales that were made, did 

14 you? You did not know the persons to whom they 

15 were made, NOU did not make the deposit, you did 

16 not do anything during that period of time, am 

17 I correct? 

11 A I would 

19 Q And you would 

1111. A I would take my deposits to the bank, I would 

21 take them, my father-in-law wouldn't take them, 

. 21 I would take them • 

D Q But your father-in-law, up to this last year, 

24 handled all of the money and endo~sed all of the 

checks. 
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A I know, but I would take deposits to the bank. 

2 Q Oh, when 

you say he, your father-in-law, Abel, 

3 didall of that up until this year, 

did he not? 

4 A I would take the deposits to the bank even if I 

5 was sick, I would drive. 

s Q And is it a fair statement to say that each and 

7 every document l.n these records that you have 

8 testified to, being 55, 56 and 59, from that -- on 

9 the face of the documents from the period that we 

10 have stated, you had no personal knowledge concern-

11 ing them, isn't thu' a fair statement? I 

12 A Well, like I tell you, I couldn •t tell you exactly 

13 the time I was out or in. 

~ Q Because you weren't there, obviously? 

15 A How do you know? You don •t know even yourself. 

16 Well, you don•t know because !don't remember 

17 exactly what time -- I mean what date I was there. 

18 Q Mrs. Yzaguirre, why is it that you are so 

19 insistent on testifying to facts about which you 

20 have no personal knowledge? You have done that 

21 twice now -- three times. I want to know what is 

22 the reason that you have a compulsion to testify 

13 as to personal facts you do not know about. 

24 A ~ Goa. Because --

25 Q Ma •am? 
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A I said I was doing the thing, it is my writing. 

2 Q What is 

your 

writing? You are not telling this 

3 court --

4 ;, Why don't you go here to where -- in '74, you •re 

5 going way back over here. 

6 I know, when you select --who helped you select --

1 who helped select those exhibits? 

8 A Nobody selected nothing for mP-. 

9 Q Those, of course, in •74, you have testified to 

10 some of those, and I appreciate that fact. There 

11 are none in '75 are L~3re? 

12 A Well --

~ Q I say there are none in '75 1 are they? 

14 A Well, because they stop I don't know when 

15 they stopped the checks. 

16 Q All right. 

11 A I don•t have any -- for '75 1 they are not buying 

18 any more. How could you have for '751 

19 · Q All right. In addition to the welfare account 

20 which Judge Carrillo had, he had also a personal 

21 account, didn't he? Do you remember I asked you 

D · about that earlier? 

D A To me, he only had a personal account. 

u Q And you -- well --

a A I mean --
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2 

3 

- ___1_3__'2_;~ I 

I don't want to get in a ring around the roses. I 

He had an account and it was all chargedto that 

account, 
$300, and taken and put on it? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q And what was left he paid it? 

6 A Right. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

18 

20 

II 

24 

MR. MITCHELU I want to introduce at 

this point, if I might be permitted to, 

Your Honor, certain checks that were 

previously introduced. These would appear 

at page 544 ~~ the hearing. May I approach 

the witness, Your Honor? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

MR. MITCHELL: I would like to have 

these packaged up, Judge. I haven't made as 

neat a package as counsel. I might be 

permitted to make such a package because 

they do --

THE MASTER: Well, yes, just get it 

marked and ask any questions and then this 

afternoon get it prepared neatly. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right, Your Honor. 

May I have this marked, please? 

(Marked for identification by the 

reporter as Exhibit ~-47, 1 through 16.) 
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2 
(Discussion oft the record.) 

3 Q Mrs. Yzaguirre, I hand you now R-47 and they 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

are numbered pages 1 through and including 16, 

and I ask you if they appear to be copies of the 

original checks that I believe I handed you on 

the hearing in October in Austin as being checks 

by Judge Carrillo payable to the Cash Store and 

endorsed, I believe, by Abel Yzaguirre. Is 

that what they appear to be copies of? 

11 A Yes. One is end or~:~ ... ' by my husband and then some 

12 are endorsed by me. This is --

13 Q Yes, some appear to be endorsed by you and some 

14 appear to be endorsed by Lauro? 

15 A Some are end ora ed by my husband • He usually 

l6 doesn't do this, but all the rest are mine. 

~ ~ Now, for the purposes of the record, wo~ld you 

18 start on page 546 and let•s -- to determine the 

19 signatures and the handwriting that might become 

a question. 

21 The checks there on 546 are all endorsed by 

A~el Yzaguirre, are they not? 

at A Yes. 

M Q And on 547, are you with me, Abel Yzaguirre alco 

endorsed those, did he not? 
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A Yes. 

2 Q And on 548, Abel Yzaguirre endorsed all of those, 

3 those are in •73? 

4 A Yes. 

s Q And on page 549 it would be page four of Exhibit 

6 R-47? 

1 A That•s right. 

8 Q The endorsement on those thr~e items are also 

9 Cash Store, Abel Yzaguirre? 

w A On page 549? 

11 Q Yes, ma •am. 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q And thae cneck.s are in '73, am I correct? 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q And are all by Judge Carrillo to the Cash Store, 

1.6 am I correct? 

11 A Yes. 

18 Q And page 550, the checks on 550, it would be in 

19 May or '73, is endorsed by Abel Yzaguirre and the 

one on May 11 of '73 is endorsed by Abel Yzaguirre, 

21 am I correct? 

~ A That is right. 

23 Q And the one tn May 19th, for $40 is endorsed by 

24 your husband? 

25 A That • s r 1gb t. 
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Q All right. On page 551 those checks are all 

2 endorsed by your father-in-law and the; &re in 

3 November or May of 1973, am I correct? 

4 A Yes. 

s Q On page 551? 

6 ;, Yes. 

7 Q See the ones there on page 551? 

8 A Yes. 

g Q Payable to --

10 A Yes. 

11 Q All endorsed by Abel, ,our daddy-in-law? 

12 A (No answer by the witness.) 

13 MR. MITCHELL: May I approach the 

14 witness, Judge Meyers. 

IS Q On page 6 of this exhibit, these are all endorsed, 

16 are they not, by Abel, can you see them all right? 

17 A Those are endorsed -- this one is by Abel, let me 

18 see, it says Cash store, Abel Yzaguirre. 

19 Q That's right, and so --

~ A But I put that. 

21 ~ On, I see, tt.at is in your handwriting, though? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q All right. Are the other Abel Yzaguirres, are 

24 those in your handwriting or are tho~e in your 

father-in-law•s handwriting? 
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A These are his. 

2 Q Okay. But you didn't put-- you didn•t put ;your 

3 Mrs. Lauro Yzaguirre? 

4 A No. 

5 Q You put Abel Yzaguirre? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q Who had the authority on the bank account, Abel 

8 Yzaguirre? 

9 A He did. 

w Q On page 552 did you have any authority on the bank 

11 account at all 1 

12 A After that, '75, you know. 

13 Q Ma •am'l 

14 A Where it says Mrs. Lauro Yzaguirre, then I d ld 

15 have .• 

~ Q And that would be when, please? 

17 A Well, this check is dated 7-5-73 on png,e 553. 

U Q All right. That is commencing when you began to 

19 have au thor 1 ty? 

ao A Yes. 

11 Q so you endorsed those appearing on page 553 which 

were Judge-- which were Judge Carrillo's checks? 

23 A Yes. 

H Q To the Cash Store in July of 19737 

15 A That •s right. 

---r 
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Q And those are all endorsed by you on page 553, am 

2 I correct? 

3 A 553. 

4 Q Yes, sir, and 554, am I correct? 

s A Yes, sir. 

6 Q And on 555? 

7 A Yes, sir. 

e Q And 556? 

9 A Yes, sir. 

10 Q And 5577 

II P. Yes, sir. 

u Q And 558 -- no, I notice on 558 there is Abel 

13 Yzaguirre. Is that Abel or is tnt you? 

14 A That 1 s me • 

15 Q All right. That is the check in July of '72, am 

16 I correct? 

17 A Yes. 

n Q And on page 559, those endorsements are Abel 

19 Yzaguirre's again, is that Abel or is that you? 

20 A That ls -- January the 15th of '72, that is his. 

21 Q All right. On Page 560, those endorsements are 

Abel Yzaguirre's and they appear to be in his 

handwriting, don't they, and they were in April of 

'72? 

• A Yes, that appears to be his. 
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Q All right. And then on 561, those are checks by 

2 

3 

Judge Carrillo to the store in May of '72 and 

they appear to be endorsed by your daddy-in-law, 

am I correct? 

5 A They appear, yes. 

6 Q All right. 

7 MR. MITCHELL: We offn R-47, Judge 

8 Meyers. 

9 THE MASTER: It is admitted. 

w Q Now, let me hand it back to you for some 

II questions, Mrs. Yzae~irre. Your testimony has 

12 been that an account would be carried in the 

13 sire 

14 MR. MITCHELL: Well, strike that. 

15 Q Let me -- so we can understand, I am going to 

16 ask you to answer my questions at a time 

17 commencing in June of '72 to the date that the 

18 account closed because I don•t want you to answer 

19 anything not having any personal knowledge from 

20 January Of 171 to June Of '72, Okay? 

21 A Okay. 

~ Q From the time you went back into the store, you 

carried an account, I suppose you carried an 

~ccount with Judge 0. P. Carrillo? 

~ A Yes, sir. 

-------4~----------------------------------------------------------------:r-
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Q Is that correct? 

2 A Yes, that is correct. 

3 Q And that account ~ould be totaled up and did you th n 

4 receive $300 from the count~ to be charged on that 

5 account as per Ramiro Carrillo's instructions to 

6 you? And would you do it every month, would you 

7 tape it up and close it out on a monthly basis? 

8 A If it was under $300, I would put credit due him. 

9 Q "11 right. 

w A Or if it was over $300, I would put credit due us. 

11 Q A 11 right. 

n A That is the way I had it. 

13 Q All right. The reason I am asking that is that 

14 would those checks then that ~ou are -- that are 

15 in that Exhibit R-47 be Judge Carrillo's checks 

16 to pay the account that was personally due from 

17 him? 

18 A Well, some -- some might have been and some was 

19 cash. 

20 Q That he cashed? 

21 A Yes. 

Q He received cash? 

23 A Yes. 

r, All right. 

25 A Sometimes he would pay the difference and some 

-----!!----------------------------~-----~-
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was cash that he would come and get. 

2 Q All right. Now, out of fairness to you, that 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

R-47, many of those checks, of course, are a 

period of time when you weren't there. And looking 

at only those that were there when you were there, 

it appears that Judge Carrillo paid his account 

about twice a month? 

8 A We 11 --

9 Q For example 

10 A :Jell, no. 

11 Q For example, look a to .!ay, there are three checks 

12 in May, I believe, of '72. You weren•t there in 

13 May of '72? 

u A Personal checks. 

15 Q Yes? 

16 A I am surprised that there were not more because 

17 every time he would take a trip or something he 

18 would come and so met 1me s he had more than that. 

19 0 What volume of bus 1nes s did the Cash Store do 

that was classified as welfare business? I am 

21 not talking about just what we are talking about 

on Judge Carrillo, I am taking about a total amount 

23 on a monthly bas is. 

24 A On welfare bus !ness? 

'' 'ii ,' 

Q Yes, say pick a year. 
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3 

A Monthl~ total welfare business to my knowledge, 

not over $100, to my knowledge. I mean, am I 

answering your question? 

4 Q You might be answering but I am afraid I don•t 

5 understand. How much -- let me get at it this 

6 way. 

7 A I mean maybe I am not --

8 Q Let •s take a time when you were there, let •s take 

9 the middle of '73, all right? 

10 A Yes, sir. 

11 Q And the Cash :tore po.~·ticipated in the welfare 

12 program, did it not? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q And how many -- and the Benavides store -- there 

15 were other stores in there --

16 A There were several stores there, yes. 

~ Q That sold to welfare recipients? 

~ A I don't know, I wouldn•t know about the other 

19 stores, I don•t know. 

20 Q You don•t know of any discrimination in you all's 

21 favor that the welfare -- used by the welfare, 

do you? 

23 A No. 

~ Q At any rate, I would like to know if you know, 

how much total volume of business the Cash Store 
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did that was welfare business, Mrs. Yzaguirre? 

2 A You mean monthly or what? 

3 Q Monthly. 

4 A Well, like I told you, to my knowledge, there were 

5 only three or four recipients and let•s just say 

6 a total of not over $100. Maybe -- is that what 

1 Q Yes, all right, and would that be true, then, for 

8 the full '72, '73, '74, about that same amount 

9 every month? 

10 A Probably so. 

11 Q Now from .January of .'1is year, '75, have you ever 

12 had an OC<1as ion to do any business with Judge 

13 Carrillo Ln your store, to date? 

14 A From January? 

15 Q Yes. 

16 A To date? 

17 Q Yes. 

18 A Yes. 

19 Q And that is that 11 ttle -- that is 

20 account that you have testified to 

21 I believe -- has he paid you since 

22 in Oc tober'l 

23 A Yes, I thank you very much. 

24 Q. And you got your check for that? 

25 A Yes. 
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Q I believe you said Mowed you $5, didn•t he? 

2 A N:>, no. 

3 Q What was it? 

4 A Somebody called me and the one that brought the 

5 message didn't bring it right. 

6 Q How much did he owe you? 

7 A I said -- and you can open your b?oks, you asked 

8 me if he owed me any thing, ard I said he dib •t 

9 owe me over $5, you see. 

10 Q All right. And what was the -- what was the 

11 exact account, Mrs. :. .:aguirre? 

12 A $3.~4, if I am not mistaken. 

13 Q And I promised he would get you tnat check 

14 immed !a tely? 

15 A And I thank you. I wish I would have more of you 

16 over there so I could collect from people that 

17 owe me. 

U ~ Thank you, ma'am. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2li 

MR. MITCHELL: Your witness. 

NS, LEVATINO: Your Honor, we do have 

some cross-examination. 

THE WITNESS: Is that yours, Mr. 

Mitchell 1 

MR. MITCHElli That goes i_n the record. 

THE MASTER: It ls the court reporter's. 
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3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

18 

11 

18 

19 

II 

23 

24 

~ 
MR. MITCHELL: I will give it to him, \ 

thank you, ma•am. 

MS. LEVATINO: we do have some 

examination but ln light of the time, I 

think lt would be best to take up this 

witness again in the morning. 

THE MASTER: All right. We will be 

in recess until 8:30 tomorrow morning. 

(Whereupon, the hearing was in 

recess at 1:05 p.m. on November 12th, 1975, 

until 8:30a.m. on November 13th, 1975.) 
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